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About 
PADICO Holding 

Palestine Development and Investment, Ltd. (PADICO Holding) was 
established in 1993 as a public shareholding company with limited liability, 
and listed in the Palestinian Exchange (PEX). The company has since been 
dedicated to contributing to the development and enhancement of the 
Palestinian economy, alongside both the public and private sectors by aiming 
its investments at vital economic sectors.

Over the past 25 years, PADICO Holding has continued to achieve great strides in the 
Palestinian economy and prove its ability to engage large-scale investment projects, despite 
operating under challenging political and economic circumstances.  The company boasts a 
Board of Directors filled with experts in their fields, which has contributed to the enhancement 
of the company’s vision and the development of a more flexible strategy in accordance with 
local, regional and international standards. 

Our Advantage and Strategy
PADICO Holding is  committed to fulfilling its vision of supporting and enhancing the 
Palestinian economy through the creation of projects across a variety of vital sectors, including 
Telecommunications, Information Technology, Financial Services, Real Estate, Industrial 
Zones, Industry, Agriculture, Tourism, Infrastructure and Energy. 

The company’s strategy of diversified investments has made PADICO Holding a model of 
investment in Palestine; it has allowed for increased returns over the years, an enhancement 
of resource development, and a reduction in investment risk. 

Our Vision 
PADICO Holding is dedicated to its role as an entrepreneur in the development of the Palestinian 
economy. In addition to attracting international investors to Palestine, our company prioritizes 
local investment projects across vital economic sectors, the creation of job opportunities, and 
launching creative economic initiatives in partnership with the public and private sectors. 

In its role as a national company, PADICO Holding remains dedicated to supporting the Code 
of Conduct and Ethics in all of its social and developmental activities, initiatives and projects.

5

“Since its establishment, PADICO Holding has played a major 
role in pushing the development wheel in Palestine through the 
implementation of hundreds of developmental projects in vital sectors. 
The company is dedicated and will continue to dedicate its experience 
and unique expertise, which were acquired along the past decades to 
move forward with the implementation of more strategic projects to 
support the Palestinian economy.”
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1993
The Palestine Development 
and Investment Company 
Ltd. (PADICO Holding) is 
established. 

1994
The Palestine Real Estate Investment 
Company (PRICO) is established as  
the first real estate investment 
company in Palestine.

The Palestine Industrial Investment 
Company (PIIC) is established.

1997
The first trading session in the 
Palestine Exchange (PEX) is 
launched and PADICO shares 
are listed. 
The largest livestock company 
in Palestine, the Palestine Poultry 
Company or “Aziza”, is 
established.

1998
The first cellular 
communications company 
in Palestine (JAWWAL) is 
established. 

1996
The first industrial zone in 
Palestine is established in the 
Gaza Strip as Palestine Industrial 
Estate Development & 
Management Company 
(PIEDCO Gaza).

2011
The Jericho Gate for Real Estate Development 
Co. is established to carry out the largest 
tourism and entertainment development project 
in Palestine.
Issuance of first corporate bonds in Palestine 
with a nominal value of USD 85 million.
The first five-star hotel in the Gaza Strip , 
Al-Mashtal Hotel, is opened.

2014
The Rabiyat al-Quds residential 
real estate project is launched.

2019
A solar energy project in 
the Gaza Industrial Zone 
with a productive energy 
of 7.3 megawatts is 
established. 

2006
PADICO Holding acquires 
the Jerusalem 
Development and 
Investment Company 
(JEDICO) to be PADICO’s 
investment arm in the 
Palestinian tourism sector.

1999
PADICO distributes 
cash dividends for the 
first time. 

2010
The Nakheel Palestine Company, one of the 
largest agricultural companies specializing 
in Medjoul Dates, is established. 
In partnership with other investors, the 
Palestine Power Generation Company 
(PPGC) is established in order to build the 
first power plant in the West Bank, powered 
by gas with a productive energy of 400 
megawatts. 

1995
The Palestine 
Telecommunications Company 
(Paltel) is established as the first 
telecommunications company 
in Palestine. 

The Palestine Exchange (PEX) is 
established.

2012
The St. George Hotel is opened in 
Jerusalem.
Listing Palestine Exchange (PEX) 
shares.

2000
The first five-star hotel in Palestine, 
Jacir Palace, is opened in 
Bethlehem.
The al-Mashtal Tourism Investment 
Company is established.

Start of
PADICO
Holding

The Story
 Goes On 

 Milestones
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Excellence
      and Generosity

8 9
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 Growth in
 Shareholder’s

 Profits

25% 

 Shareholders’
 Profits USD

Million

 Consolidated
Profits USD

Million
2019

Consolidated  
Revenues USD 

Million
163

 Growth in
 Consolidated

 Revenues

34%
 Growth in

 Consolidated
 Profits

29%

 Book Value per
Share

 USD

1.60

 Consolidated
 Assets USD

Million
809

Total Assets of the  
Group Companies 

USD 

 Billion
 2.4

Main
Indicators of 2019

 Total Equity
USD

Million
470

 Shareholders’
 Equity USD

Million
395
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On behalf of myself and the Board of Directors, I am 
pleased to present to you the company’s annual report of 
2019, which includes a summary of our achievements and 
principal financial results for the past year. 

Despite the complex conditions under which the 
Palestinian economy has been operating, 2019 was a 
year filled with various accomplishments for PADICO 
Holding. As the result of improved performance by our 
subsidiaries and associates, PADICO Holding achieved 
a 29% growth in profits this year. 

We also made outstanding achievements during 2019, as 
Nakheel Palestine won the “Palestinian Exporter” award in 
agriculture. Thanks to the company’s high-quality standards 
and its ability to compete internationally, Nakheel Palestine 
was recognized  as a pioneer Palestinian trademark in 
the dates industry worldwide. In another outstanding 
international achievement, the Jacir Palace Hotel received 
the Best Luxury Heritage Hotel World Wide Award of 
2019. This is not the first time that PADICO Holding’s 
subsidiaries have won international awards, reinforcing the 
internationally trusted quality of the products and services 
provided by our projects in Palestine.

We were also proud to see a noticeable improvement in 
the performance of our tourism companies this year, as 
international tourism to Palestine soared in 2019. This 
growth in tourism was reflected in the performance of 
PADICO Tourism Co. (JEDICO), which achieved a 42% 
growth in its operating profits in 2019 compared to the 
previous year, as well as an increase in the occupancy rate 
by 10%. 

PADICO’s largest investment, the Palestinian 
Telecommunications Company (Paltel) continued its digital 
transformation journey in 2019 with the goal of building a 
knowledge-based economy and strengthening the digital 
infrastructure in Palestine.

In 2019 Paltel launched its data center project, the 
largest project of its kind in Palestine, and the most 
modern in the local region. The project provides 
data servers for both the private and public sectors. 
PADICO Holding also opened the Paltel Group 
Innovation Hub, “Fikra,” in 2019, which hosts emerging 
Palestinian innovators, initiatives and projects. 

Additionally, in 2019, the Jericho Gate for Real Estate 
and Development Co. launched the first phase of 
development and rehabilitation of infrastructure. The 
company also began its second and third phases of 
development work, expected to be completed by the 
end of 2020, to fulfill the increasing demand as a result 
of the high standards and quality, and the company’s 
commitment to complete the project on time.

Meanwhile, the Palestine Industrial Investment 
Company (PIEDCO) established a new company in 
2019 with the aim to develop an animal feed factory in 
the southern district of the West Bank. The company 
is expected to begin operations in 2021, and with the 
partnership of a local investor, has a capital of USD 8.2 
million. Additionally, the Palestine Poultry Company, 
“Aziza”, has completed the first stage of its ideal 
cow-farm project with a capacity of 500 dairy cows. 
Moreover, the National Carton Industry Company 
started running a new production line of corrugated 
cardboard, which would improve and increase its 
market share.

In 2019, PADICO introduced innovative solutions to 
improve the company’s investment options, strengthen 
the independence of our national economy, and boost 
its infrastructure, especially in the Gaza Strip. Thus, 
PADICO launched a solar energy project in Gaza’s 
industrial zone, considered the largest in the area, 
built on a space of around 60,000 square meters on 
the rooftops of factories in the industrial zone. The 

Chairman’s  
Letter

station will provide the required energy to operate the 
factories at a reduced cost and create much needed 
job opportunities in the Gaza Strip.

PADICO Holding is known for its vitality and ability 
to adapt to its investment environment due to the 
company’s belief in the concept of renewal. PADICO 
embodied its spirit of renewal by electing a new Board 
of Directors that combines great investment expertise 
of former board members, along with the innovative 
creativity of new members. I fully trust that the array of 
expertise and skills of our board members will help our 
company make further qualitative leaps towards new 
achievements, that will not only satisfy our respected 
shareholders and community, but will also uphold the 
high expectations of our company

Our accomplishments over the past 25 years are what 
motivate us to double our efforts towards achieving 
more success. Our investment steps for the next 
phase are based on two main pillars: investing in the 
areas that most need support and resilience, especially 
Jerusalem and the Gaza Strip, while also investing 
in large strategic projects of a rewarding return. 
Throughout our work, PADICO Holding will continue to 
invest in Palestinian youth and provide them with the 
necessary opportunities to achieve success.

In conclusion, I thank our loyal shareholders for 
their trust and faith. I also applaud the efforts of the 
Board of Directors and the executive team whose 
unrelenting work has not only resulted in our continued 
achievements, but continued to take our company to 
higher levels. We pledge to remain loyal to our slogan, 
which we have raised since the beginning of our 
journey “committed to invest in Palestine.”

Bashar Masri                    
Chairman of the Board
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Governance

PADICO Holding adopts the principles of good governance in all businesses 
as an important basis for strengthening supervision and management, and 
as a framework for responsibilities and duties in order to ensure improved 
performance. Moreover, PADICO considers governance to be an integral part of 
its principles and management policies that govern the company’s work, the best 
use of resources and distribution of authorities among its Board of Directors, side 
committees, and executive administration.

PADICO Holding treats governance as a basic principle to ensure that the company 
applies the best international standards and practices, with a focus on providing 
a well-built work environment and code of conduct that positively influences the 
work environment and aligns the company with its social impact. The company 
is also committed to issuing quarterly and annual financial statements as well as 
annual reports in accordance with the Palestinian Capital Market Authority and 
the Palestinian Exchange’s requirements.
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Jamal Hourani

 Nidal Sukhtian

 Hisham Al-Masri

Sabih Masri

Mahdi Saifi

Ammar Aker

Board 
of Directors 

Nabil Sarraf

Yahya Al-Salqan

Bashar Masri
Chairman

Yazeed Mufti

Dina Masri

Khaled Anabtawi
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PADICO Holding’s Board of Directors consists of thirteen members whose role is to follow up 
on the progress of the company’s businesses, budgets, financial and investment regulations 
and policies. The board is also responsible for approving strategies and future plans, aiming to 
maximize the shareholders’ wealth and to increase both the quality of provided services and 
return on investments and to maintains at continuity.

The Board of Directors held six official meetings during 2019, in addition to further workshops 
discussing the latest updates regarding the company’s achievements, businesses, financial 
and administrative reports, and future strategies and goals. 
The company discloses the dates and agendas of the meetings to the Palestinian Capital 
Market Authority and the Palestine Exchange (PEX), pursuant to the regulations in force in 
Palestine. Recorded minutes of the meetings and resolutions are then provided to regulators. 

Internal regulations are highly emphasized by PADICO Holding as the Internal Audit Department 
enjoys full independence and directly reports to the audit committee. 
The department applies international standards for audits of financial and operational activities 
of PADICO Holding and all of its subsidiaries. The Internal Audit Department’s relationship 
with associate and subsidiary companies was composed in accordance with decisions by the 
Board of Directors and in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter.

The Role of Board of Directors

Board Meetings

Internal Audits 

Committees of the Board 

Audit Committee

 Yazeed Mufti

Member

Hisham Masri

Member

Ziad Turk

Chairman

20

Sanad Law Group association with Eversheds – Internationally

Haitham al-Zoabi – Palestine

Ernst & Young

Legal Advisors

Secretary General

External Auditors

Ziad Turk
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Nihad Kamal Deputy General Manager

Amjad Hassoun Chief Financial Officer

Nimer Abdulwahed Real Estate Sector Manager 

Kareem Abdul Hadi  Tourism Sector Manager

Mohammad Najjar Infrastructure and Energy Sector Manager

Mohammad Tirawi Projects Department Manager

Jihad Zammari Internal Audit Department Manager

Ziad Tafesh Deputy Admin and HR Manager

Samer Safadi Shareholders Management Unit Manager

PADICO Holding has more than 7,000 shareholders, including local and international companies 
and  individuals. 

Shareholders

Major Shareholders

Paltel Group 16.9

Sabih Masri Group and other related parties 12.6

Massar International Investment Group 11.2

Siraj Palestine Fund 1 6.5

Munib Masri Group 5.1

PADICO Holding is committed to all disclosure regulations in Palestine in disclosing the 
company’s and its subsidiaries’ results. The company is also committed to delivering disclosures 
to its shareholders and regulators in accordance with respective deadlines. PADICO Holding 
provides quarterly and annual financial reports, in addition to publishing the Board of Directors’ 
resolutions and the recommendations of public committees on the company’s website, and 
Palestine Exchange’s (PEX) website.

PADICO Holding follows all appropriate protocols to deliver invitations and reports to the 
shareholders, in addition to the continuous updating of its website with relevant information 
required by investors; including data, financial and annual reports, company’s share indicators, 
and any other information or updates regarding the associate and subsidiary companies. 

Disclosures

Communication with Shareholders

PADICO Holding Share Indicators

2019 2018

Paid-in capital (million shares) 250.0  250.0

 Year end book value per share (USD) 1.58 1.53

P/B 0.69 0.84

Closing price (USD) 1.10 1.28

P/E 12.1 21.3

Trading volume (million shares) 14.9 21.5

Trading value (USD million) 19.4 28.5

Turnover ratio (%)  6.0 8.6

52-week high (USD) 1.40 1.53

52-week low (USD) 1.10 1.21

Ownership %Major Shareholder

Executive Management 
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Summary of the Palestinian Economy’s 
Performance in 2019

In 2019, Palestine’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) increased by 1.2% in comparison with 2018, 
despite fluctuations that resulted from Israel’s withholding of tax revenues from the Palestinian 
Authority.  The funds in question amounted to two-thirds of the Palestinian government’s revenues 
in 2019, has causing a critical liquidity crisis, and eventually the government’s inability to pay public 
sector employees and private sector arrears; especially during the first and second quarters of 
2019. This period of instability was then followed by a decline in grants and foreign aid. Hence, 
the GDP per capita declined by 1.3% compared to 2018, according to the joint report by the 
Palestinian Monetary Authority and the Palestinian Central Bureau of Statistics,.
Estimates indicated a decline in the unemployment rate to 26.0% in 2019 compared to 26.8% 
in 2018. In addition, there was an increase in the trade balance deficit by 7.0%, as the ratio of 
exports increased by 3.0% while the ratio of imports increased by 6.0% compared to the previous 
year. Estimates also indicated that the average of overall consumer prices index recorded a 1.6% 
increase in comparison with 2018.
Moreover, according to 2020 forecasts by the Palestinian Monetary Authority and the Palestinian 
Central Bureau of Statistics, it is expected that the GDP will increase by 2.4%, while the GDP 
per capita is expected to decrease by 0.1%. The gross consumption value, private and public, is 
expected to increase by 2.1% while the total value of investment is expected to increase by 5.0%.  
The forecasts were made in accordance with the scenario that imposes the continuation of the 
existing political situation between Palestine and the Israeli occupation as it was in 2019.
It is necessary to note here that the above-mentioned forecasts of 2020 were issued in December 
2019. Thus, they do not reflect the latest updates events that took place in the first quarter of 
2020 when the “Deal of the Century” was announced, further increasing instability in the region 
and decreasing the chances of a political solution between Israel and Palestine. Additionally, the 
COVID-19 pandemic is expected to have large-scale, unpredictable consequences and effects 
not only on the Palestinian economy, but on economies around the globe.
According to the latest published forecasts in 2020 by the World Bank, the Palestinian economy 
could shrink up to 7.0% in 2020 due to the impacts of the COVID-19 crisis.

Market Value of PADICO 
and its Listed Subsidiary 

and Associate Companies at 
Palestine Exchange (PEX)

*Since establishment

USD Billion

Market Value of PADICO 
and its Listed Subsidiary 

and Associate Compa-
nies to GDP

9% 1.35

Tax and
Licenses* 

USD Billion
 2.1

The Palestinian economy is considered to be a promising mar-
ket, with high potentials for growth despite the limited resources 
in Palestine. In addition to a dynamic private sector committed 
to investing in Palestine and a vast international network, the 
Palestinian economy has a unique human capital in the form of 
young educated Palestinians who have real power to achieve 
growth and prosperity.

27
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Jerusalem 

Jericho

Hebron

Ramallah

Bethlehem

Gaza

Nablus
Tulkarem

Jenin

Geographical Distribution of Investments

28

As PADICO Holding highly 
emphasizes diversity on the 
sectoral level, geographical 
diversity is also considered to be 
very important; the company’s 
projects and investments are 
divided among the most vital 
economic sectors as they also 
cover most Palestinian areas.

PADICO Holding’s plan focuses 
on energy and infrastructure 
and investing in sensitive 
and important geographical 
areas such as Jerusalem City, 
and areas that suffer from 
a lack of infrastructure and 
high unemployment rates, 
particularly the Gaza Strip.

 Number of
 companies that

PADICO invests in

58

Investment Sectors 

Classification of Investments for Financial Reporting Purposes

Industry and agriculture

Telecommunication

Financial

Real estate and 
industrial zones

Infrastructure and energy

Tourism

The total value of PADICO Holding’s direct investments reached a book value of USD 586 million 
by the end of 2019, which was distributed across several economic sectors. The following graph 
shows the relative distribution among these sectors at the end of 2019: 

Classification USD Million

Subsidiary companies  139.6

Associate companies  371.3 

Other companies  74.7 

Total 585.6
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Overview of 
Investments 
Performance 
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Telecommunications  
Sector PADICO Holding’s investments in the Telecommunications sector 

stood at US $346 million at the end of 2019; which constitute 59% of 
the company’s total investments. PADICO considers Paltel Group 
and VTEL Holding as one of its most essential investments in the 
telecommunications sector

Total Assets

1,239.3
 Paid-in Capital

Million Million

 USD  USD

185.6
 PADICO

 Ownership

31%
 Year Founded

1995

 Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD

 184
 Year Founded

2006
 PADICO

 Ownership

10%
Total Assets

 233.8
Million

 USD

The Telecommunications and 
Information Technology sector 
is an important basis for other 
economic sectors.

This sector is considered a main 
engine for economic development 
as a whole and a main driver of 
the knowledge economy. The 
relationship between direct 
development in this sector and 
the creation of job opportunities is 
proportional. 

The Telecommunications and 
Information Technology sector 
is also an effective tool in 
the transfer and exchange of 
information with high efficiency 
and at a low cost.
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 Successfully
 launching the
 Hadara TV in

Gaza Strip

Palestine Telecommunications Company
Since its establishment, PADICO Holding has taken the lead in investing in the 
telecommunication sector by establishing the Palestine Telecommunications Company 
(Paltel) in 1995 and Palestine Cellular Communications Company (Jawwal) in 1998 as 
pioneering companies in the telecommunications and IT sector in Palestine. PADICO’s 
initiative aimed to provide telecommunications services of all kinds, including the internet, 
in Palestine.. Both companies played a major role in the qualitative transformation of 
this sector and in increasing the sector’s contribution rate to the Palestinian economy.

Palestine Telecommunications Company 
(Paltel) is a pioneer in the telecommunications 
and information technology sector in Palestine. 

Palestine Cellular Communications Company 
(Jawwal) is the first and largest cell-phone 
operator and 3G services provider in Palestine. 

Hadara for Technology Investment Company 
is the leading internet services provider in 
Palestine. 

Reach for Communications Services 
Company is the first contact center for 
outsource telecommunications in Palestine. 

Main Achievements in 2019

Main Indicators in 2019

 Launching the I
 Teacher, Enjoy,

 and Jawwal Pay
applications

34 35

 Number of
Cellular Lines

 Total Subscribers
Database

Million Lines

 Million Subscribers

3.0

3.8

 Operating
 Revenues

Million
420

Number of High-
Speed Internet Lines

 Number of
Landlines

Thousand Lines

Thousand Lines
363

467

EBIDTA

162

 Establishing the
 newest and largest
 data center in the

region

 USD

Million

 USD



3736

In 2019, PADICO Holding invested around USD 72 million in the 
financial services sector in Palestine, which constituted around 12% of 
the company’s total investments for that year. In addition to an array of 
investments in financial portfolios, Palestine Exchange (PEX) is one of 
PADICO Holding’s main investments in the financial services sector in 
addition to other investments portfolio.

Year Founded

1995
Paid-in Capital

Million
10

Total Assets

Million
 13.5

PADICO
 Ownership

75%

Financial  
Sector 

With the belief that capital 
markets play an essential 
role in attracting local, 
regional, and international 
investments, PADICO Holding 
established the first stock 
exchange market in Palestine, 
and in 1997, held its first 
trading session. 

PADICO Holding recognizes the 
importance of offering shares 
for public subscription and 
attracting capital, the central 
pillar of financing strategic 
development projects, in 
addition to other components 
of the financial services sector, 
such as banking. 

 USD

 USD
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EBITDA

Thousand

 USD

941

 Number
 of Listed

Companies

48

 Total
Revenues

Million
 2.6

 Completing
 preparations for
 the new trading
 application by

Nasdaq

Palestine Exchange (PEX)

Listed companies are allocated into five economic sectors: Banking and Financial Services, 
Insurance, Investment, Industry and Services. Shares are then traded in Jordanian Dinars and 
US Dollars. PEX mainly focuses on advertising investments in the listed companies’ shares and 
attracting local and foreign investors. PEX uses the latest technologies in its trading processes 
and also applies the best international regulations and systems to guarantee the highest levels 
of transparency, integrity and investor protection.

Banking and Financial Services 

Investment 
Insurance 

Industry 
Services 

Main Achievements of 2019

Sectoral Allocation 
to Trading Volumes 
in 2019

 Updating the
 depository and

 transfer center’s
 electronic system
 and other trading

systems

 Launching
 PEX’s new

website

Main Indicators of 2019

 Operating
 Revenues

Million
 1.9

 Market Value
 Growth Rate
(2015-2019)

12.5%

 Number of
Executed Deals

Thousand Deals
30

Total Cash and 
Stock Dividends 

from 2018*
USD  

Million
 188

Banking and Financial Services 

Investment 
Insurance 

Industry 
Services 

Market Value 2019

*Listed Companies

 USD  USD
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PADICO Holding’s investments in the Real Estate and Industrial Zones sector stood at US $84 million; which 
constitute 15% of the company’s total investments at the end of 2019. Palestine Real Estate Investment Company 
(PRICO) is the investment arm of PADICO Holding in this sector; Jericho Gate and Rabiyat al-Quds are also 
considered some of the company’s most essential investments in this sector.

 Year Founded

2011
Paid-in Capital

Million
49.4

 PADICO
 Ownership

25%

Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD
 Year Founded

1994 89.9
 PADICO

 Ownership

77%

Jericho Gate

Real Estate Sector

Real Estate
and Industrial Zones 

Real Estate in Palestine 
is  an fundental economic 
driver of the Palestinian 
economy, whether through 
its contribution to the GDP, 
employment, or its direct 
contribution  on several 
other economic activities. 

Most economic reports indicate 
a visible ongoing growth in the 
construction and real estate 
sector in Palestine. The Real 
Estate sector in Palestine has 
been steadily growing since the 
Palestinian Authority took over in 
1994. Moreover, the real estate 
sector is foreseen as one of the 
safest and least risky investments 
under the often unstable political 
conditions of Palestine. 

 USD

41
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Industrial zones play a 
key role in enhancing 
investments in the industrial 
sector by setting up an 
attractive environment for 
investments, as well as 
opening exporting windows 
to export commodities to 
international markets. 

Industrial zones support the 
Palestinian economy and boost 
the developmental cycle by 
encouraging investors and 
providing creating jobs, which 
consider one of the most goals 
of establishing industrial zones 
increasing the competitive 
advantage of the Palestinian 
p r o d u c t .

Industrial Zones

Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD
 Year Founded

2012 6.5
 PADICO

 Ownership

58%

Paid-in Capital

Million
14.5

Year Founded

1996

 PIEDCO Gaza

 PADICO
 Ownership

97% 

As the leader in important sectors like telecommunications and real estate, PADICO Holding 
built the first industrial zone in Palestine in 1996 in Beit Hanoun, Gaza Strip on a total space 
of 480,000 m2. Through its investment arm, PRICO, and in partnership with the private sector, 
PADICO Holding is overseeing the execution of the Jericho Agro Industrial Park project (JAIP), 
which contains a compound for commercial and industrial facilities, as well as distribution and 
storage facilities in the Jericho district of the West Bank. The goal behind the industrial zone is to 
play a significant role in boosting the industrial sector’s performance, especially the agricultural 
industries of Jericho City, as it provides a stimulating infrastructure for agricultural activities and 
food industries with a high economic value.

Real Estate
and Industrial Zones

 USD
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 Al-Masayef
Housing

Includes  23 villas  
and  38 apartments  

Palestine Real Estate Investment Company (PRICO) 

The main focus of PADICO Holding has long been real estate investment, which contributes 
to the creation of an added economic value through the development of high-level real estate 
projects, and a partnership between the private and public sectors. Thus, Palestine Real Estate 
Investment Company (PRICO) was established in 1994 as the first company of its kind to 
introduce the Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) projects in partnership with the governmental sector 
and municipalities. PRICO was also the first to execute a planned housing project in Palestine, 
with the construction of the Beit Hanoun housing neighborhood in Gaza. From there, PRICO 
went on to execute a dozen of significant real estate projects in Palestine, of which was the al-
Ghadeer Neighborhood in Ramallah and al-Bireh government, in addition to many other housing 
and commercial-use buildings in the West Bank.

PRICO invests and operates in three major fields: Real Estate Development, 
Real Estate Operation and Management, and Industrial Zones. 

Real Estate Projects

Real Estate Operation and Management Projects

Al-Bireh
Central Station

Park Plaza Mall 
(Jordan)

 PADICO House
 Building

Mall
Projects

 Al-Kashafeh
 Building

Industrial Zones Projects

Gaza
Industrial Estate

(GIE)

  Jericho Agro
Industrial Park

(JAIP)

 PRICO House
Building

 Al-Ghadeer
Neighborhood
Included 357 

housing units, and 
commercial buildings 

At a space of 
 10 Thousand m2 

(commercial)

Main Indicators of 2019

 Housing, Commercial,
 Tourism and Industrial

Buildings

 Shareholders’
Equity

Million

 USD

Operating
Revenues

Million

 USD

10 55

 622

 Land Area of
 Industrial zones

 1,000

Total Assets

 118
Million

 USD

Main Achievements of 2019

 Focusing on
 advertising, selling

 and renting real
estate units

 Attracting new sectors
 to invest in the Gaza

 Industrial Zone,
 including the medical

 drugs and supplies
 industry, frozen

 foods and meats and
supportive services

 Developing
 operational projects
 and improving their

performance

Beginning the second 
phase of the Jericho 

Agro Industrial 
Park development 
(building external 

wall)

 Real Estate
Management

193
Thousand m2 Thousand m2 Thousand m2
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Total Revenues

Million

 USD

 Number of
Developers

17

 20.5
 Total Assets

75.4
Million

 USD
Operating Profits

Million

 USD

 10.2

Main Indicators of 2019

47

Main Achievements of 2019

Completed the development 
of phase 1 infrastructure 

work, and initiated the 
development of phase 2 

works which is expected to 
complete by end of 2020.

Sold 248,000 m2

of land plots 
for residential, 

commercial and 
tourism use.

 Total Project
Area

Thousend m2

 3,000
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Palestine is considered 
one of the main tourist 
destinations worldwide 
due to the variety of 
attractions and historical 
landmarks. 

It is a popular destination 
for religious pilgrims due to 
the diversity of monuments, 
landmarks and holy sites left 
behind from the world’s greatest 
civilizations that passed through 
the land over the centuries. 
In addition, Palestine has a 
variety of cultural, religious and 
civilizational heritage, along with 
its environmental diversity and 
outstanding natural sites.
The tourism sector in Palestine 
is still growing despite having 
the main elements of success, 
which attracts both local and 
international investors. The 
tourism sector contributes to job 
creation and improves income 
levels for a great segment of the 
population; it also exposes the 
world to the unique culture and 
identity of Palestinians. 

 Paid-in Capital  PADICO
 Ownership

100%
Million

 USD

71

The total of PADICO Holding’s investments in the tourism sector reached USD 25 
Million, which constitutes 4% of PADICO Holding’s total investments, at the end 
of 2019. The Jerusalem Development and Investment Company (JEDICO) is the 
investment arm of PADICO in the tourism sector. 

 JEDICO

Tourism
Sector

Year Founded

1997
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Jerusalem Development and Investment Company (JEDICO)

PADICO believes in the importance of tourism and the ability of this sector to not only develop the 
national economy, but to provide promising opportunities for the local community in Palestine. This 
belief has inspired a number of the company’s business ventures, including the founding of many 
distinct hotels in Palestine. 

Palestine’s tourism industry has been significantly impacted over the years by PADICO’s ventures, 
including the opening of Palestine’s first five-star hotel, Jacir Palace, in 1999 in the birthplace of Jesus 
Christ, Bethlehem City. In 2006, PADICO opened Al-Mashtal Hotel in the Gaza Strip and the Blue 
Beach Resort in 2016 with an amazing view of the Mediterranean Sea. In Jerusalem City, PADICO 
invested in the St. George Hotel in 2012, which overlooks the world-famous holy sites of the Old City. 
PADICO will continue its investments in this vital sector, especially in the holy city of Jerusalem, where 
the numbers of tourists and pilgrims from all over the world continue to increase every year.

In addition to the Jacir Palace Hotel in Bethlehem, St. George Hotel in Jerusalem, 
and Al-Mashtal Hotel and Blue Beach Resort in the Gaza Strip, JEDICO manages 
several other hotels and tourist facilities in Palestine, such as the Executive Club 
in Ramallah. 

Jacir Palace Hotel was built in 1910 and is one of the pre-
mier hotels in Palestine due to its unique historical signifi-
cance as a former palace, commissioned in the early 1900s 
by prominent local merchants, the Jacir family. The hotel is 
rated with five stars and includes 250 rooms and suites.  

Executive Club in Ramallah, Palestine, is an exclusive 
sports and fitness club, and just one of PADICO’s suc-
cessful investments in the bustling city.

Blue Beach Resort in Gaza is known for its stunning 
views of the Mediterranean Sea. The resort includes 
160 upscale chalets and suites

St. George Hotel is a landmark hotel in Jerusalem, 
known for its unique view of the Old City’s holy sites. 
The hotel includes 130 rooms and offers guests a 
unique experience in Jerusalem.

Al-Mashtal Hotel is the first and only five-star hotel 
in the Gaza Strip, and includes 185 rooms and suites.

Main Achievements of 2019

 Increase in the occupancy
 for hotel rooms and halls
 across aforementioned

 properties

 Provide training plans
 (exercise and nutrition plans)

 in cooperation with the
international Cybex group

Main Indicators of 2019

Operating Revenues

Million
 13.0

Number of Guests

Thousand
174

Total Assets

Million
55.6

 Number of
Occupied Rooms

Thousand
92

Operating Profit

Million
 3.2

 USD  USD

 USD
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 PADICO
 Ownership

57%

The industrial sector has been one of PADICO Holding’s main focuses since its establishment. 
In 1996, the company acquired the Palestine Industrial Investment Company (PIIC), which then 
went on to establish and invest in several industrial companies including the Palestine Poultry 
Company “Aziza”, Palestine Plastic Industry Co. Ltd, Pinar General Trading Company, Golden 
Wheat Mills Company, Vegetable Oils Industries Company, and the National Carton Industry 
Company. 

In 2010, PADICO Holding established Nakheel Palestine Company, which represents one of the 
company’s main investments in the agricultural sector, as it plays a major role in mobilizing the 
Palestinian labor force. Nakheel Palestine owns vast plots of land, planted with palm trees that 
produce world-renown Medjoul dates. The company is based in Jericho City, with an area of 
around 3,500 thousand m2 that are planted with over 42,000 palm trees.

PADICO Holding’s investment volume in the industrial agricultural sector 
reached USD 47 million in 2019, representing 8% of the company’s total 
investments.

Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD
Year Founded

1995 26.4

Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD
Year Founded

2010 19

 PADICO
 Ownership

50%

Industrial
Agricultural Sector

The industrial sector is a 
major component of the 
Palestinian economy due to 
its significant contributions 
in achieving economic 
and social development. 
The industrial sector, in its 

Promoting
self-sufficiency 
in Palestine

strategic, transferable and 
traditional branches, is the 
second most important 
sector to contribute to the 
national GDP. The food 
and agricultural products 
industry is one of the most 
essential transferable 
industries, as it includes 
dairy, oils, feed, etc. 

PALESTINE INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
(PIIC)
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Main Achievements of 2019

Palestine Industrial Investment Company (PIIC)

National Carton Industries Company (NCI) has the 
largest market share in the cardboard industry in 
Palestine.

Pinar is one of the main specialized companies in 
dairy production in Palestine.

Vegetable Oil Industries Company (VOIC) is one of 
the oldest Palestinian companies specializing in 
vegetable shortening and oils in accordance with 
international quality standards.

Jordan Vegetable Oils Company (JVOIC) is 
considered one of the oldest vegetable oil 
production companies in the Arab world.

Palestine Poultry Company (Aziza) is the company’s 
largest animal wealth project in Palestine. In addi-
tion to serving as an abattoir, the plant specializes in 
the production of feed, broiler chicken, and eggs for 

Golden Wheat Mills Company (GWMC) is the most 
modern of its kind in the Middle East in equipment 
and groundwork. The daily production power of the 
company is about 450 tons.

Palestine Plastic Industries Company (PPIC) is 
focused on producing tubes and plastic containers of 
all shapes and according to the market requirements.

Main Indicators of 2019

Total Sales

Million

 USD

 62.9
Total Assets

119.2
Million

 USD

 Market Value of
Shareholders’ Equity

 56.9
Million

 USD

Number of Factories

9
Number of Farms

15
Number of Products

 29

 Egg-producing
Farms

 Production power
 of 30 million eggs

per year

Feed Factories

 Production
 power of 150,000

tons per year

Broiler Chicken 
Farms

Production power 
of 1,200-1,400 ton 

per year

Palestine Poultry 
Company (Aziza) 

completed the first stage 
of the cow-farm project 

with a capacity of 500 
dairy cows, with a daily 

production volume of 
over 12,000 liters of milk

National 
Carton 

Industries 
Company (NCI) 

started the 
corrugated 
cardboard 

production line

PIIC partnered with a local 
investor to start a feed 

factory in the southern area 
of the West Bank. Al-Rabyeh 
for Animal Feed and Grains 

Company was established with 
a capital of USD 8.2 million, 
and is expected to start the 
production and operations 
during the first half of 2021
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Annual
Production Power

2,300
Tons

Nakheel Palestine specializes in the planting, marketing, and 
exporting of the finest Palestinian Medjoul and Barhi dates 

Main Achievements of 2019

Winning the “Palestinian 
Exporter” award for its 

contribution to the Pales-
tinian labor market

Increasing its pro-
duction power by 
45% compared to 

2018

Exporting the 
first shipment of 
dates to Turkey, 
Brazil and Italy

Nakheel Palestine Company

Main Indicators of 2019

 Storage
Capacity

 Operating
Revenues

Million

 USD

8.8

 3
Thousand Tons

 Total
Assets

 42.3
Million

 USD

 Number of
Medjoul Trees

Thousand
 42

 Land Area of
Farms

Million m2
  3.5

 Exporting to

 15
Countries

Over
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Towards 
Palestine… 
Par Excellence 

Energy Projects
PADICO Holding has paid special attention towards the development infrastructure projects 
in Palestine, launching projects that are capable of contributing to the revitalization of the 
Palestinian economy and boosting growth across several areas, including energy. This 
includes investing in the Palestine Electric Company (PEC) in Gaza with a production capacity 
of 140 megawatts, the Palestinian Power Generation Company (PPGC) in the northern West 
Bank with a production capacity of 400 megawatts, and the solar energy project in Gaza with 
a production capacity of 7 megawatts. 

PADICO sees the investment in this sector as a priority, primarily in order to reduce dependency 
on electricity imports. PADICO looks forward to further investing in this sector, with the 
understanding that uplifting this sector requires concerted efforts by all parties of the private 
sector. Additionally, PADICO recognizes the capability of this sector to draw in investors in 
order to recruit the large amount of funds needed for energy projects.  

PADICO Holding’s special attention to the energy and infrastructure sector 
is represented in the value of the company’s investments in this sector, 
which reached around USD 11 million in 2019, constituting 2% of PADICO’s 
total investments for the year.

Infrastructure
and Energy Sector

The energy sector is one of 
Palestine’s most vital economic 
sectors, which is in critical need of 
development in order to contribute 
to economic change and growth. The 
energy sector is also considered a 
main supplier for other sectors of the 
economy, particularly the industrial 
sector.
One of the main challenges facing 
Palestine today is energy security, 
as the energy sector almost entirely 
depends on importing electricity from 
neighboring countries. Additionally, 
the prices of electricity in Palestine 
are the highest in the MENA 
region. Importing electricity has 
become a burden on the Palestinian 
government, making investing in the 
development of the energy sector 
even more necessary under the 
current conditions of population and 
economic growth in Palestine. 
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Main Achievements of 2019

Solar Energy Project in Gaza Industrial Estate

Main Indicators of 2019

Year Founded Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD

2018 2.9
 PADICO

 Ownership

100%

Total Assets Investment Cost  Production
Capacity

Million

 USD

Million

 USD

Megawatts
 7.2  10.8  7.3

Signing the project 
contract with a co-
alition of two local 

companies and one 
Jordanian company

 Starting work on
 the project and

 completing over
 80% of installation

work

Year Founded Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD

1999 60
 PADICO

 Ownership

6%

Main Indicators of 2019

The Palestine Electric Company (PEC)

Total Assets  Production
Capacity

Million

 USD

Megawatts
110  140
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Palestine Power Generation Company (PPGC)

 PADICO
 Ownership

Paid-in Capital

Million

 USD

20%20
Year Founded

2010

Main Indicators of 2019

Total Assets

 Expected
 Production

Capacity

Investment Cost

 Used
Fuel

 Used
Technology

Million

 USD

Megawatts

Million

 USD

16.4 

460 

600 

Natural 
Gas

(Combined Cycle 
Gas Turbines)

CCGT

63
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Future Visions

The general framework of PADICO Holding’s future plans for the coming few years is shown below:

Focusing on improving operational processes across all companies and projects where PADICO 
Holding and its subsidiaries invest, which is carried out by raising competency and boosting 
efficiency in all operation and production centers through rationalizing administrative expenses, 
controlling operating costs, enhancing revenues and diversifying sources

Paying particular attention to projects and companies that PADICO Holding is currently investing 
in, especially the real estate, industrial cities and alternative energy sectors. Thus, turning these 
investments into a main driving force for medium and long-term profitability, which is done 
through expanding the base of these investments by launching new projects and efficiently 
utilizing the current assets and potential of current projects

Investing in new developmental projects in promising sectors, and focusing on clean energy and 
infrastructure sectors

Reducing the debt of PADICO Holding from year to year, restricting them to bonds in the medium 
term 

64 65
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Our Community Commitment and Intellectual 
Leadership

Education

Sports

PADICO Holding demonstrates its commitment through an explicit strategy that is 
grounded in the diversification of social responsibility, which includes: social, devel-
opmental, national and humanitarian programs, in addition to supporting the sports, 
youth and education sectors. 

As part of PADICO Holding’s belief that education is the process of “manufacturing 
Palestinians,” the company prioritizes supporting the education sector as a whole, as 
it is considered a main component in the comprehensive and sustainable development 
process. Thus, PADICO has continued to offer its academic and professional schol-
arship program in order to develop a generation that is capable of building a strong 
home country. PADICO Holding also continues to support graduates by offering the 
necessary expertise and skills for the labor market through the company’s cooperation 
with “Massarak” (“your path”career path program), which allows graduates to explore 
different career paths in the labor market, thus, enabling them to find promising job 
opportunities. In 2019, PADICO interned and hired several recent graduates at its main 
headquarters and the headquarters of its subsidiaries. 

PADICO Holding believes that supporting and developing the capabilities of youth 
is essential. The company also believes in the importance of developing the sports 
sector for the youth, particularly in regard to encouraging the youth to engage in local 
sports. Thus, PADICO supported and sponsored several sports clubs during 2019.

66 67

Social 
Responsibility 

 The Group’s Investment
 in Social Responsibility

since Establishment

 Number of Employees
and Workers

 125USD 
Million
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Financial 
Performance 
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PADICO Holding’s Consolidated Profit 
increased by 28.6% in 2019, which 
amounted to USD 20.0 million, compared 
to USD 15.5 million in 2018. PADICO’s 
Attributable Profits to Equity Holders 
increased by 24.6%, which amounted to 
USD 18.7 million, compared to USD 15.0 
million in 2018.

PADICO’s Profitability ratios noticeably 
increased in 2019, as the Earnings Per 
Share (EPS) increased to 7.5 cents in 
comparison with 6.0 cents in 2018. The 
Return on Equity (ROE) also increased 
from 3.1% in 2018 to 4.2% in 2019, and 
the Return on Assets (ROA) increased to 
2.4% in 2019 from 1.8% in 2018.

0           5         10         15         20        25        30

15.52018

20.02019

%28.6+

6.02018

7.52019

%24.6+

%3.12018

%4.22019

%35.3+

%1.82018

%2.42019

%33.3+

Consolidated Profits

EPS (cent)

ROAROE

Consolidated Revenues increased to USD 162.6 million in 2019 in comparison with USD 121.4 million 
in 2018, while the Operating Revenues of subsidiaries increased by 10.9%; that is from USD 86.8 
million in 2018 to USD 96.3 million in 2019.

As indicated by the following graph, all sources of revenue increased in 2019 compared to 2018. 

 Profits of Financial Assets
 Portfolio and Others

Gains from Sale of 
Shares in subsidiary 

PADICO’s Share of 
Associates’ Results of 
Operations 

Operating Revenues

2018 2019
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Consolidated RevenuesOperating Revenues

 Allocation of consolidated revenues

Financial 
Performance of 2019 
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Consolidated Operating Expenses 
amounted to USD 65.6 million in 2019 in 
comparison with USD 64.1 million in 2018. 
This indicates an increase of 2.3%, which 
is lower than the increase in the percentage 
of operating revenues 10.9% as previously 
mentioned.

However, Consolidated General and 
Administrative Expenses decreased by 3.5% 
from USD 15.0 million in 2018 to USD 14.5 
million in 2019.

Consolidated Finance Expenses increased 
by 7.6% from USD 14.7 million in 2018 
to USD 15.8 million in 2019. Moreover, 
Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization 
Expenses increased by 9.6% from USD 10.2 
million in 2018 to USD 11.1 million in 2019. 
This increase was a result of implementing 
the International Financial Reporting Standard 
(IFRS) 16 on leases. 
It is to be noted that the Group’s companies 
have been provided with adequate and 
sufficient provisions to be able to meet 
any decline in the investments’ value of 
projects, tangible and intangible assets, 
specifically those working in economic 
sectors more sensitive to changes in the 
status and conditions of the political or 
financial conditions, and/or those working 
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Operating Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses

Consolidated Assets amounted to USD 809.2 million at the end of 2019, 11.6% of which 
were current assets, and 88.4% were non-current assets. The current ratio increased 
from 0.8 at the end of 2018 to 1.0 at the end of 2019, marking an increase of 20%. The 
following graph indicates the allocation of the company’s assets and investments at the 
end of 2019: 

Summary of Consolidated Financial Position 
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Consolidated Liabilities amounted to USD 
338.7 million at the end of 2019 in comparison 
with USD 361.5 million at the end of 2018; that 
indicates around a USD 22.8 million decrease 
at a rate of 6.3%. Total debts constitute 76% 
of the total Consolidated Liabilities, decreasing 
by 11.9% from USD 291.9 million at the end of 
2018 to USD 257.1 million at the end of 2019, 
with a decrease of USD 34.8 million. Thus, de-
creasing the rate of debt as the following graph 
indicates, the Consolidated Debt represents 
31.8% and 54.7% of the total Consolidated As-
sets and Consolidated Equity, respectively. 

Distribution of Consolidated Assets

Debt to Assets ratio Debt to Equity ratio

 389.6 

 188.5 

 71.8 

 109.5 

 49.8 

 Distribution of Consolidated Liabilities

Investments in Associates 
Companies 
Inventories and Investment 
Properties

Cash and Financial Assets

Accounts Receivable and Other 
Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 
and Other Assets
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Distribution of Consolidated Liabilities and Equity

Consolidated Equity amounted to USD 470.5 million at the end of 2019 in comparison with 
USD 476.5 million at the end of 2018. Distributed by: (A) Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 
of PADICO which increased to USD 394.7 million at the end of 2019 in comparison with USD 
382.8 million at the end of 2018, and (B) Non-Controlling Interest which amounted to USD 75.8 
million at the end of 2019 in comparison with 93.7 million at the end of 2018.

Difference between Final and Preliminary 
Disclosure 

Following the preliminary disclosure on February 13th, 2020, according to which 
a consolidated profit of  USD 25.1 million value was disclosed, additional provi-
sions were taken by some subsidiaries in line of PADICO’s conservative policy to 
sustain any potential losses in investments and operating in light of the latest de-
velopment and changes that occurred later in the initial disclosure, which clearly 
affects the overall operating activities in several economic projects and sectors, 
mainly the tourism, real estate and industrial sectors. This led to a decrease in 
the consolidated profit to USD 20.0 million, according to the final audited state-
ments. The consolidated assets and equity decreased by USD 3.6 million and 
USD 5.1 million, respectively, while the consolidated liabilities increased by USD 
1.5 million. Additionally, some of the financial position items were reclassified in 
accordance with the final audit process and the international financial reporting 
standards.  

Equity Attributable to Equity 
Holders of PADICO 

Non-Controlling Interest

Liabilities
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Auditors’ Report 
and Consolidated 
Financial 
Statements
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PALESTINE DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT

LIMITED LIABILITY HOLDING COMPANY (PADICO)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019
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The at tached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements
1

Palestine Development and Investment Limited (PADICO)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2019
(U.S. $ 000’s)

2019 2018
Notes U.S. $ U.S. $

Assets
Non-current  assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 133,334 147,043
Intangible assets 7 31,044 34,287
Investment propert ies 8 44,766 95,932
Projects in progress 9 14,428 12,007
Right-of-use assets 3 9,647 -
Investment in associates 10 389,557 367,850
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income 11 85,358 82,085
Long-term accounts receivable 13 7,093 8,939

715,227 748,143
Current  assets
Inventories and ready for sale propert ies 12 27,007 32,192
Accounts receivable and other current assets 13 42,756 38,841
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 7,631 11,678
Cash and short-term deposits 15 16,552 7,167

93,946 89,878
Total assets 809,173 838,021

Equity and liabilit ies
Equity
Paid-in share capital 16 250,000 250,000
Share premium 16,932 16,932
Treasury shares 17 (361) (361)
Statutory reserve 18 30,775 28,158
Voluntarily reserve 18 1,594 1,594
Fair value reserve 11 (55,100) (45,084)
Foreign currency translat ion reserve 4,764 1,674
Retained earnings 146,059 129,905
Equity at t ributable to equity holders of  the parent 394,663 382,818
Non-controlling interests 5 75,788 93,696
Total equit y 470,451 476,514

Non -current  liabilit ies
Long-term loans and borrowings 20 100,266 116,060
Debt bonds 21 120,000 120,000
Provision for employees’ indemnity 22 6,113 6,201
Long-term lease liabilit ies 3 8,356 -
Other non-current liabilit ies 23 9,635 10,877

244,370 253,138
Current  liabilit ies
Credit  facilit ies and short -term port ion of long-term loans and

borrowings 20 36,872 55,864
Accounts and notes payable 24 13,870 15,569
Short -term lease liabilities 3 1,394 -
Income tax provision 26 1,484 978
Other current liabilit ies 25 40,732 35,958

94,352 108,369
Total liabilit ies 338,722 361,507
Total equit y and liabilit ies 809,173 838,021

The at tached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements
2

Palestine Development and Investment Limited (PADICO)
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(U.S. $ 000’s)

2019 2018
Notes U.S. $ U.S. $

Revenues
Revenues from contracts with customers 27 90,154 80,337
Realized and unrealized gains arising from sale of shares

in a subsidiary 4 30,640 -
PADICO’s share of associates’ results of operat ions 10 33,471 32,913
Gains from financial assets portfolio 28 2,221 1,741
Rent revenues 6,119 6,448

162,605 121,439
Expenses
Operat ing costs and expenses 29 (65,578) (64,132)
General and administrative expenses 30 (14,494) (15,016)
Finance costs 31 (15,778) (14,669)
Depreciation and amortization 32 (11,125) ( 500,11 )

55,630 17,472

Other provisions and expenses, net 33 (32,355) (1,256)
Profit  before income t ax 23,275 16,216
Income tax expense 26 (3,289) (677)
Profit  for the year 19,986 15,539

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 18,700 15,013
Non-controlling interests 1,286 526

19,986 15,539
Basic and diluted earnings per share at t r ibutable to

equit y holders of  the parent  (U.S $) 34 0.07 0.06

The attached note 1 to 43 form part if these consolidated financial statements The attached note 1 to 43 form part if these consolidated financial statements
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The at tached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements
3

Palestine Development and Investment Limited (PADICO)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(U.S. $ 000’s)

2019 2018
U.S. $ U.S. $

Profit  for the year 19,986 15,539
Ot her comprehensive income items
Items not to be reclassified to consolidated income

statement in subsequent periods:
Net loss of financial assets at fair value through

comprehensive income (4,856) (2,053)
PADICO’s share of associates’ other

comprehensive income items (5,786) 2,401
(10,642) 348

Items to be reclassified to consolidated income
statement in subsequent periods:

Foreign currency translation differences 4,399 (3,799)
PADICO’s share of associates’ other

comprehensive income items 970 (945)
5,369 (4,744)

Total ot her comprehensive income items for the
year (5,273) (4,396)

Net  comprehensive income for the year 14,713 11,143

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 11,774 11,982
Non-controlling interests 2,939 (839)

14,713 11,143
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Palestine Development and Investment Limited (PADICO)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(U.S. $ 000’s)

Notes
2019 2018
U.S. $ U.S. $

Operat ing Act ivit ies
Profit  before income tax 23,275 16,216
Adjustments for:
Depreciat ion and amortization 32 11,125 10,150
Impairment of  assets and investments 33 21,683 -
Unrealized gains arising from sale of shares in a subsidiary 4 (13,571) -
PADICO’s share of  associates’ results of operat ions (33,471) (32,913)
Gains f rom financial assets portfolio (2,221) (1,741)
Finance costs 15,778 14,669
Losses (gains) from sale of property, plant and equipment 464 (125)
Other non-cash items (6,495) 2,482

16,567 8,738
Working capital adjustments:
Accounts receivable and other current assets (1,179) 6,267
Inventories and ready for sale propert ies 2,640 1,806
Financial assets at fair  value through profit  or loss (25) (30)
Accounts and notes payable (4,064) (1,426)
Other current liabilit ies 84 (3,013)
Other non-current liabilit ies (3,278) (2,404)
Employees indemnity paid (1,112) ( 391,3 )
Income tax paid (554) (730)
Net cash from operat ing act ivit ies 9,079 7,869

Invest ing Act ivit ies
Financial assets at fair  value through other comprehensive

income (8,058) (59,023)
Investment in associates - (55)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,667) (4,683)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 802 1,250
Investment properties (10) (1,736)
Projects in progress (7,857) (6,201)
Change in cash due to derecognit ion of a subsidiary ( 220 ) -
Cash inflow from sale of a subsidiary 36,670 -
Cash dividends from associates 24,625 24,582
Dividends received 6,293 1,567
Net cash from (used in) invest ing act ivit ies 48,596 (44,299)

Financing Act ivit ies
Distributed cash dividends paid (3,350) (5,066)
Credit facilit ies and long-term loans and borrowings (33,766) 44,261
Change in restricted cash (346) (75)
Finance costs paid (14,774) (14,346)
Change in non-controlling interest 3,966 660
Payments of long-term lease liabilities (1,522) -
Net cash (used in) f rom financing act ivit ies (49,792) 25,434
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,883 (10,996)
Net foreign currency translat ion differences 1,156 ( 4091, )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of  the year 6,785 19,190
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 15 15,824 6,785

6

Palestine Development and Investment Limited (PADICO)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

1. Corporate Informat ion
Palestine Development and Investment Limited (PADICO) was incorporated on October 14,
1993 under the Liberian Off Shore Business Corporation Act in Monrovia, Liberia. PADICO
shares are publicly traded in Palest ine securities Exchange. On December
3, 2009, PADICO was registered in Palestine as a foreign company under registration No.
(562801332).

The main object ives of PADICO are to develop and encourage investment in various sectors
including industrial, real estate, tourism, housing and agricultural services, and to provide
technical and consultancy services through the establishment of companies, joint ventures
and associations with other companies.

The consolidated financial statements of PADICO as at December 31, 2019 were authorized
for issuance in accordance with a resolut ion of the Board of Directors on March 9, 2020.

2. Consolidated Financial Stat ements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Palest ine
Development and Investment Limited (PADICO) and its subsidiaries as at  December 31, 2019.
PADICO's ownership in its subsidiaries' subscribed capital was as follows:

Activity type
Country
of origin

Ownership
%

2019 2018

Palestine Real Estate Investment Company (PRICO)* Real estate Palestine 76.75 75.71
Jericho Gate for Real Estate Investment (JG) (note 4) Real estate Palestine 25 50
TAICO for trade and investment company Real estate Jordan 100 100
Palestine Industrial Investment Company (PIIC) Industr ial Palestine 56.72 56.72
The Palestinian Waste Recycling Company (Tadweer)** Industr ial Palestine 100 100
Palestine Securit ies Exchange Company (PSE) Financial market Palestine 74.72 74.72
Jerusalem Development and Investment Company Ltd. (JEDICO) Tourism Britain 100 100
Palestine Development and Investment Company Private

Shareholding Investment Palestine 100 100
Rawan International Investment Company Investment Jordan 100 100
Palestine General Trading Company Ltd. Investment Palestine 100 100
Palestine Company for the Transfer of Technology Ltd. Investment Palestine 100 100
Palestine Company for Canning and Packaging Ltd. Investment Palestine 100 100
Palestine Company for Basic Chemical Products Ltd. Investment Palestine 010 100
PADICO Services Company Investment Palestine 100 100
Nakheel Palestine for Agricultural investment (Nakheel Palest ine) ** Agricultural Palestine 50 -
Al-Rashid Group for Real Estate Investment and Development *** General trading Palestine 100 -

*    During the year, PADICO purchased addit ional shares in PRICO. Therefore, PADICO’s
ownership percentage increased to 76.75%.

The attached note 1 to 43 form part if these consolidated financial statements
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**     During August 2019, Tadweer (a subsidiary) transferred all its shares in Nakheel Palest ine
for Agricultural Investments (9,500,000 shares) to PADICO. Accordingly, Nakheel became
a subsidiary of PADICO instead of Tadweer.

***  During the year, PRICO (a subsidiary) established Al-Rashid Group for Real Estate
Investment and Development with an authorized capital of JD 50,000. Subsequently and
during the year, PRCIO sold its entire shares in Al-Rashid Group to PADICO.

The financial year of the subsidiaries is the same as the financial year of PADICO and, where
necessary, PADICO makes adjustments to align the policies of the subsidiaries with the
accounting policies of PADICO.

3. Account ing Policies

3.1 Basis of preparat ion
The consolidated financial statements of PADICO and its subsidiaries have been prepared in
accordance with Internat ional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in U.S. Dollars, and all values,
except when otherwise indicated, are rounded to the nearest thousand (U.S. $ 000’s).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit  or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income that have been measured at fair value as at the
consolidated financial statements date.

3.2 Basis of consolidat ion

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of PADICO and its
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2019.

PADICO controls an investee if, and only if, PADICO has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it  the current ability to direct the
relevant activit ies of the investee).

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When PADICO has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, PADICO
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

- The contractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

- �PADICO’s vot ing rights and potential vot ing rights

PADICO re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when PADICO obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when PADICO
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date PADICO gains control unt il the date PADICO ceases to control the subsidiary.

8

Profit  or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attr ibuted to the
equity holders of the parent of PADICO and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit  balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiar ies to bring their accounting policites in line
with PADICO’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilit ies, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transact ions between members of PADICO are eliminated
in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

If PADICO loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets (including
goodwill), liabilit ies and carrying value of non-controlling interest while any resultant gain or
loss is recognized in consolidated income statement. Any investment retained is recognized at
fair value.

3.3 Changes in account ing policies
The accounting policies used in the preparat ion of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those used in the preparat ion of the annual financial statements for prior year
except for PADICO's adoption of the following standards, amendments and interpretations
effect ive start ing from 1 January 2019. Except for IFRS 16, the adoption of these standards,
amendments and interpretations has no material impact on PADICO's consolidated financial
statements. PADICO did not apply early adoption to any standards issued but not yet
effect ive.

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operat ing Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transact ions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognit ion, measurement, presentat ion and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will
cont inue to classify leases as either operat ing or finance leases using similar principles as in
IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where PADICO is the lessor.

PADICO adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach with the date of initial
applicat ion of 1 January 2019 accordingly, prior year financial statements were not restated.
PADICO elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously ident if ied as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the
date of init ial application.

Following is the effect of the increase on the consolidated statement of financial posit ion as at
January 1, 2019 result ing from the adoption of IFRS 16:

2019
U.S $

(000’s)
Assets 10,656
Right-of-use assets

Liabilit ies
Lease liabilit ies 10,656
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a) Nat ure of the effect  of  adopt ion of IFRS 16
PADICO has lease contracts for various items of plant, equipment. Before the adoption of
IFRS 16, PADICO classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease was classified as a finance lease if it  t ransferred
substantially all of the r isks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to
PADICO, otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. Finance leases were capitalised at
the commencement of the lease at the inception date at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Lease payments were apport ioned between interest (recognised as finance costs) and
reduction of the lease liability. In an operat ing lease, the leased property was not capitalised
and the lease payments were recognised as rent expense in profit  or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were recognised under
Prepayments and Trade and other payables, respect ively.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, PADICO applied a single recognit ion and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The standard
provides specific transit ion requirements and pract ical expedients, which has been applied by
PADICO.

• Leases previously accounted for as operating leases
PADICO recognised right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilit ies for those leases
previously classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount
as if the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based
on the amount equal to the lease liabilit ies, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease
payments previously recognised. Lease liabilit ies were recognised based on the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date
of init ial applicat ion.

PADICO also applied the available practical expedients wherein it :
· Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
· Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to

extend or terminate the lease.
· Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12

months at the date of initial application.

b) Amounts recognised in t he consolidated statement  of f inancial posit ion and consolidated
income statement :
Set out below, are the carrying amounts of PADICO’s r ight-of-use assets and lease liabilit ies
and the movements during the year:

Lands Buildings
Motor

vehicles Total Liabilit ies
U.S $

(000’s)
U.S $

(000’s)
U.S $

(000’s)
U.S $

(000’s)
U.S $

(000’s)
As at 1 January 2019 4,591 5,657 408 10,656 10,656
Amort ization * (237) (703) (67) (1,007) -
Finance costs - - - - 611
Payments - - - - (1,522)
Currency variance - (2) - (2) 5
Total 4,354 4,952 341 9,647 9,750

* Amort izat ion for an amount of U.S $ 117,668 was allocated to palm trees as of December
31, 2019 (note 6). 10

Lease liabilities details are as follows:

U.S $
(000’s)

1,394Short-tern
8,356Long-term
9,750Total

Set  out  below are the new account ing policies of  PADICO upon adopt ion of  IFRS16:

Right-of-use assets
PADICO recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciat ion and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilit ies.

The cost of r ight-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, init ial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless PADICO is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its est imated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use
assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, PADICO recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase opt ion reasonably certain to be exercised by PADICO and payments of penalt ies for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects PADICO exercising the option to terminate.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expense in the period on which the event or condition that tr iggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, PADICO uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit  in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addit ion, the
carrying amount of lease liabilit ies is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment
to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
PADICO applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to some of its short-term leases
(i.e., those leases that  have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It  also applies the lease of low-value assets recognit ion
exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal opt ions
PADICO determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an opt ion to extend the lease if it  is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an opt ion to terminate the lease, if it  is reasonably certain not to be
exercised. PADICO has the opt ion, under some of its leases to lease the assets for addit ional
terms. PADICO applies judgement in evaluat ing whether it  is reasonably certain to exercise
the option to renew.

That is, PADICO considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it  to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, PADICO reassesses the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business
strategy).

PADICO included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of plant and
machinery due to the significance of these assets to its operations. These leases have a short
non-cancellable period and there will be a significant negative effect on production if a
replacement is not readily available.

IFRIC Interpretat ion 23 Uncert ainty over Income Tax Treatment
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of IAS 12, nor does it  specifically include requirements relat ing to interest and
penalt ies associated with uncertain tax treatments. An entity determines whether to consider
each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax
treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolut ion of the uncertainty.

Amendments t o IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Cont ribut ion of Assets between an Investor
and It s Associat e or Joint  Venture
The amendments address the conflict  between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contr ibution of assets that
const itute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss result ing from the sale or contribut ion of assets
that do not const itute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate or joint venture.

The IASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an ent ity that
early adopts the amendments must apply them prospect ively.

These amendments do not have any impact on PAIDCO’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint  ventures
The amendments clarify that an ent ity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the
net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is
relevant because it implies that the expected credit  loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-
term interests.

The amendments also clarif ied that, in applying IFRS 9, an ent ity does not take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment,
recognised as adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise
from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

12

St andards Issued but  Not  Yet  Effect ive
The standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective, up to
the date of issuance of PADICO consolidated financial statements are disclosed below.
PADICO intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Cont racts
IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts covering the recognit ion
and measurement and presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and replaces IFRS 4
-Insurance Contracts. The standard applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e. life, non-
life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entit ies that  issue them, as
well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discret ionary part icipat ion
features. The standard general model is supplemented by the variable fee approach and the
premium allocat ion approach.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
with comparative figures required. Early application is permitted provided that the entity also
applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it  f irst  applies IFRS 17. PADCIO does not
expect to be affected from the applicat ion of this standard.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definit ion of a Business
The IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business Combinat ions
to help ent ities determine whether an acquired set of act ivit ies and assets is a business or
not. They clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add guidance to
help entit ies assess whether an acquired process is substant ive, narrow the definit ions of a
business and of outputs, and introduce an opt ional fair value concentration test.

Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or
after the date of first  application, PADCIO will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definit ion of “ Mat erial”
The IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentat ion of Financial Statements and IAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Est imates and Errors to align the definit ion of
‘material’ across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definit ion. The new
definition states that, ’Information is material if omitt ing, misstating or obscuring it  could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific report ing ent ity.’

The amendments to the definit ion of material is not expected to have a significant impact on
the PADICO’s consolidated financial statements.

3.4 Signif icant  account ing judgments, est imat es and assumpt ions
The preparat ion of PADICO’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilit ies, and the disclosure of cont ingent liabilities, at the report ing
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result  in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future.
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Other disclosures that reflect the degree of risks that  PADICO is subject to include:

- Risk Management Object ives and Policies (note 38)

- Capital Management (note 38)

The key areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity done by PADICO and its
subsidiaries are described below:

Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generat ing unit  exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
The fair value less costs to sell calculat ion is based on available data from binding sales
transact ions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
discounted cash flow model.

Provision for impairment of financial assets (provision of expected credit  losses)
When determining the impairment of financial assets, PADICO’s management uses certain
estimates to determine the amounts and timing of future cash flows and also assesses
whether the credit  risk on the financial asset has increased substant ially since init ial
recognit ion and includes future information in the measurement of expected credit  losses.

Impairment of inventories
PADICO’s subsidiaries estimate the net realizable value of their inventories at the date of the
consolidated financial statements based on their past experience, and adjust the carrying
amounts, if needed.

Impairment of ready for sale properties
PADICO’s subsidiaries est imate the net realizable value of their properties available for sale at
the date of the consolidated financial statements based on their past experience, and adjust
the carrying amounts, if needed.

Taxes
PADICO and its subsidiaries establish provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for
possible consequences of audits by the tax authorit ies of the respect ive countries in which it
operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of
previous tax audits and differing interpretat ions of tax regulat ions by the taxable entity and
the responsible tax authority.

Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial posit ion cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include
considerat ions of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit  r isk and market volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets
PADICO's management reassesses the useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, and
adjusts it , if applicable, at each financial year end.

Investment properties
PADICO's management relies on real estate experts to reassess investment properties.
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Impairment of goodwill
The determinat ion whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the “ value in use”  of
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Such est imation requires
management to make an est imate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generat ing
unit  and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Judgements related to revenues from contacts with customers
Contracts signed with developers include sale of land and related infrastructure services.
PADICO has concluded that it  has two separate performance obligations by selling land to
developers and providing them with infrastructure services related to the land. Therefore, the
sale amount is distributed between the land and related infrastructure services.

Determining the lease term for contracts with renewal and terminat ion opt ion
PADICO and its subsidiaries define the lease term as the irrevocable lease period, along
with any periods covered by an opt ion to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain that it
will be pract iced, or any periods covered by the opt ion to terminate the lease, if it  is
reasonably certain not to exercise it.

3.5  Signif icant  account ing policies

Revenue from cont ract s with cust omers

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a certain point in t ime at which the control of
the goods sold is transferred to the customer.

Variable consideration:
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, PADICO estimates the amount of
considerat ion to which it  will be entit led in exchange for transferr ing the goods to the
customer. The variable consideration is est imated at contract inception

Right of return:
When the contract gives the customer the right to return the goods within a specified t ime
period, the seller assesses the value of the expected sales returns using the potent ial
weighted average method.

According to IFRS 15, The corresponding price received from the customer is variable
because the contract allows the customer to return the goods. PADICO and its subsidiaries
apply the requirements in IFRS (15) to est imate the variable return price that must be
deferred to determine it  and include it  in the selling price.

Service Revenue
Revenue from trading commissions, transfer of securit ies (and subsequent cash settlement
proceeds) and share-based fees are recognized when the service is rendered and at a certain
point in time.

Revenue from annual list ing fees for listed companies, annual fees for market brokerage
companies and subscription fees for market services are generally recognized over a period
of t ime by reference to the rate of complet ion of services rendered at the date of the
consolidated financial statements.

The prices of services provided by the market are determined by reference to the list  of fees,
commissions, fines and penalties approved by the Palest inian Capital Market Authority.
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Sale of ready for sale propert ies
The property is considered to be sold at a certain point in t ime at which time the control over
the property sold to the customer is transferred to the customer when the property is
delivered for the contracts involving uncondit ional exchange. In the case of contracts
involving conditional exchange, the sale is made only when all the conditions included in the
contract are met.

Construction contracts revenue
Contract revenue is recognized over a period of t ime by reference to complet ion rate of
completed work to total project income including any changes.

Bus stat ions revenue
Revenue from operating bus stations is recognised based on the accrual basis of accounting
which is usually when the different operat ing services are delivered.

Rooms services revenues
Room revenues are recognized over a period of t ime by reference to the rate of complet ion of
the services rendered at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

Food and beverage revenues
Revenues of food and beverage are recognized at certain point in time when sold.

Ot her Revenues

Interest income
Revenue is recognised as interest accrued using the effect ive interest method, under which
the rate used exact ly discounts est imated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends
Gains or losses on trading of investments in financial assets are recognized when the trading
process is completed. Dividend revenue is recognised when the shareholders right to receive
the dividends is established.

Rent revenues
Lease contracts where the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred from the lessor
to the lessee are classified as operating leases. The cost incurred in operating leases is added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as rent revenue over the term of
the lease.

Operating lease revenues and services are recognized over the lease term. The amount of the
rent and services paid by the tenants for periods beyond the date of the consolidated financial
statements is recorded as revenue received in advance, while the amount of the rent and
services that have not been paid as of the date of the consolidated financial statements are
recorded as accrued or unpaid income.

Expenses recognit ion
Expenses are recognized when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting.
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Current  versus non-current  classif icat ion
PADICO presents assets and liabilit ies in statement of financial posit ion based on current/ non-
current classificat ion. An asset as current when it  is:

· Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

· Held primarily for the purpose of t rading

· Expected to be realized within twelve months after the report ing period

· Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the report ing period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

· It is expected to be settled in normal operat ing cycle

· It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

· It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

· There is no unconditional right to defer the sett lement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

PADICO classifies all other liabilit ies as non-current.

Finance cost s
Finance costs direct ly attributable to the acquisit ion, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substant ial period of t ime to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the respect ive assets. All other finance costs are expensed in
the period they occur. Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connect ion with the borrowing of funds.

Income tax
PADICO and its subsidiaries provide for income taxes in accordance with applicate tax
regulations where PADICO and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income and IAS
(12) which requires recognizing the temporary differences, at the date of financial statements
between the tax bases of assets and liabilit ies and their carrying amounts for financial
report ing purposes, as deferred taxes.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the consolidated statement of financial
posit ion between the tax bases of assets and the liabilit ies and their  carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilit ies are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized, or the liability is
sett led, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the consolidated statement of financial posit ion date

Income tax expense represents the accrued income tax which is calculated based on taxable
income. Taxable income may differ from accounting income as the later includes non-taxable
income or non-deduct ible expenses. Such income or expenses may be taxable or deductible in
the following years.

A reconciliat ion is made between deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilit ies and the net
amount is recognized in the consolidated financial statements only when the legally binding
rights are available and when they are sett led on a sett lement basis or the asset is realized,
and the liability sett led simultaneously.



101100

17

Propert y, plant  and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/ or
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognit ion criteria are met. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as incurred. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the est imated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful lives
(years)

Buildings and constructions 10-50
Machinery and equipment 14-20
Furniture and Office equipment 4-7
Motor vehicles 7
Computers 5
Leasehold improvements 7
Irrigation systems and land preparat ion 10-14
Fruit ful palm trees 19

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part  initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospect ively, if appropriate.

Fair value measurement
PADICO measures financials instruments and non-financial assets, such as investments
propert ies at fair value at each consolidated financial statement date. PADICO also
discloses the fair value of the held to maturity financial assets in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements which include the following:

- Disclosure of evaluations est imates and assumptions (note 3 and 7)

- Disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets (note 36)

- Investment propert ies (note 8)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell assets or paid to transfer liabilit ies in an
orderly transaction between market part icipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transact ion to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

- �In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- �In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to PADICO.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
part icipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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PADICO uses valuat ion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:
- Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active markets
- Level 2 — Valuat ion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
- Level 3 — Valuat ion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable
External appraisers are involved for valuation of significant assets such as investment
propert ies. PADICO decides, after discussions with the external appraisers, which valuat ion
techniques and inputs to use for each case.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, PADICO has determined classes of assets and
liabilit ies on the basis of the nature, characterist ics and r isks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Cash dividends paid
PADICO recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent
when the distribut ion is authorized by general assembly. A corresponding amount is
recognized directly in equity.

Business combinat ions and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisit ion method. The cost of an
acquisit ion is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at
acquisit ion date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For
each business combinat ion, PADICO measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at
fair value. Acquisit ion costs incurred are expensed through consolidated income statement.

When PADICO acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilit ies assumed for
appropriate classificat ion and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent condit ions as at the acquisit ion date.

If the business combinat ion is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the
acquisit ion date through the consolidated statement of income.

Goodwill is init ially measured at cost being the excess of the consideration transferred over
PADICO’s net identif iable assets acquired and liabilit ies assumed. If this considerat ion is lower
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized as
income in the consolidated income statement.

After init ial recognit ion, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combinat ion is, from
the acquisit ion date, allocated to each of PADICO’s cash generating units that are expected to
benefit  from the combination, irrespect ive of whether other assets or liabilit ies of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit , and part of the operation within that
unit  is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operat ion disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operat ion when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relat ive values
of the operat ion disposed of and the port ion of the cash generating unit  retained.
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Projects in progress
Projects in progress comprise costs incurred on incomplete projects, which include design
cost , construct ion, direct wages, cost of land and port ion of the indirect costs and finance
costs. After completion, all projects’ costs are capitalized and transferred to property,
plant and equipment, ready for sale properties or investment propert ies depends on the
management directions.

The carrying values of projects in progress are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that  the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the est imated recoverable amount, the
projects are writ ten down to their recoverable amount.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on init ial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisit ion. Following initial recognit ion, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortizat ion and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in the consolidated income statement.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or infinite.

Intangible assets with finites lives are amort ized over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indicat ion that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amort izat ion period and the amort ization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is
accounted for by changing the amort ization period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting est imates. The amort izat ion expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amort ized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash generat ing unit  level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life cont inues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets include a trademark resulted from the purchase of a subsidiary in which it
has indefinite life, therefore, it is not amortized.

Gains or losses arising from derecognit ion of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets are amort ized using the straight-line method over the useful lives as follows:

Useful
lives

(years)
The right to use Al-Bireh central station 22
The right to lease the industrial zone-Gaza 20
The right to lease coast land –Chalet project-Gaza 31
The right to lease the industrial and agricultural zone –Jericho 45
The right to lease Al-Awqaf Commerical Complex-AL-Bireh 9
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Invest ment  propert ies classif icat ion
Investment properties are classified as follow:

- Investment properties that include lands and buildings (offices and stores) that kept for
rental and capital appreciation, rather than to be used for the business activit ies nor to
resell it  in the ordinary course of business.

- Inventory property that acquired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of
business which primary includes resident ial real estate that constructed to be sold before
or at the complet ion of construct ion.

Invest ment  propert ies
Investment propert ies are measured at cost less accumulated depreciat ion and any
impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the est imated
useful lives of investment properties. Land is not depreciated.

The carrying value of investment propert ies is reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that  the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
investment propert ies are writ ten down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period of
derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the carrying value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied
property becomes an investment property, PADICO accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Inventories and ready for sale propert ies
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present locat ion and condit ions are accounted
for as follows:

- Raw materials: purchase cost on weighted average cost basis

- Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labor and a proport ion
of manufacturing overheads based on normal operat ing capacity

- Ready for sale properties costs include construct ion costs, research, design, finance
costs and land in addit ion to indirect costs

Net realizable value is the est imated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of complet ion and the est imated costs necessary to make the sale.

Mature and immature biological assets (Poultry ranch) are stated at costs less any impairment
losses.
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Invest ments in associates
PADICO’s investment in its associates is accounted for using the equity method. An associate
is an ent ity in which PADICO has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
part icipate in the financial and operational policy decisions of the investee but not control
over those policies.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associates is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisit ion changes in PADICO’s share of net
assets of the associates. Goodwill relat ing to the associates is included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is neither amort ised nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
reflect the share of the results of operat ions of the associates. Unrealised gains and losses
result ing from transactions between PADICO and the associate or joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same report ing period as
PADICO. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of PADICO.

After applicat ion of the equity method, PADICO determines whether it  is necessary to
recognise an additional impairment loss on PADICO’s investment in its associates. PADICO
determines at each report ing date whether there is any objective evidence that  the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case PADICO calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated income statement.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associates, PADICO measures and recognises any
retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associates upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Invest ments in f inancial assets
All f inancial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date when the purchase or sale
of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset
within the t imeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are init ially
measured at fair value, plus transact ion costs, except for those financial assets classified as
at fair  value through profit  or loss (FVTPL), which are init ially measured at fair value.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost  or fair  value.

Financial assets at  amort ised cost and the effect ive interest method
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured init ially at fair value plus transaction
costs (except if they are designated as at FVTPL– see below). They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with
interest revenue recognised on an effect ive yield basis.
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Accounts receivables are debt instruments at amort ized cost. Accounts receivables are stated
at original invoice amount less a provision for any uncollectible amounts. When determining
the impairment of financial assets, management uses certain estimates to determine the
amounts and t iming of future cash flows and also assesses whether the credit  r isk on the
financial asset has increased substantially since init ial recognition and includes future
information in the measurement of expected credit  losses.

Subsequent to init ial recognit ion, PADICO is required to reclassify debt instruments from
amort ised cost  to FVTPL if the objective of the business model changes so that the amortised
cost  criteria are no longer met.

The effective interest rate is the interest rate used to discount future cash flows over the life
of the debt instrument, or less in certain cases, in order to equal the carrying value at initial
recognit ion.

PADICO may irrevocably elect at initial recognit ion to classify a debt inst rument that meets
the amortised cost criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significant ly
reduces an accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured at amort ised cost.

Financial assets at  FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair  value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Dividends income on investments in equity inst ruments at FVTPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement when PADICO’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless PADICO designates an
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) at  initial recognition.

Subsequent to init ial recognit ion, PADICO is required to reclassify debt instruments from
FVTPL to amort ised cost if the objective of the business model changes so that the amortised
cost  criteria starts to be met and the instrument’s contractual cash flows meet the amort ised
cost  criteria. Reclassificat ion of debt instruments designated as at FVTPL at init ial recognit ion
is not permitted.

Financial assets at  FVTOCI
At init ial recognit ion, PADICO makes an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is
not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI are init ially measured at fair value plus transact ion costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulat ive gain or loss previously accumulated in
the fair value reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated income statement but is
reclassified to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when PADICO’s r ight to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part  of the cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets
Impairment allowances for expected credit  losses (ECL) are recognized for financial
instruments that  are not measured at FVTPL. No impairment loss is recognized on equity
investments.
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An ECL provision is made at an amount equal to the lifet ime ECL, except  for the following, for
which they are measured as a 12-month ECL:

- Debt investment securit ies that are determined to have a low credit risk (equivalent to
investment grade rating) at the report ing date; and

- Other financial instruments for which the credit risk has not increased significantly since
their  init ial recognit ion.

PADICO and its subsidiaries has applied the simplified method of the standard to record
expected credit losses (ECL) on account receivables and calculated the expected credit  losses
over the ent ire life of the receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit  r isk characterist ics and the days past due.

In the expected credit  loss calculat ion model, when necessary, PADICO incorporates future
information used as inputs, such as the increase in GDP and unemployment rates.

Provisions for credit-impairment are recognized in the consolidated income statement and are
reflected in an allowance account against loans and debt instruments.

Financial assets are writ ten off after all restructuring and collection act ivit ies have taken
place and there is no realist ic prospect of recovery. Subsequent recoveries are included in
other income.

Financial assets that are measured at amort ised cost are tested as to whether they are credit-
impaired. Object ive evidence that a financial asset is credit -impaired may include a breach of
contract, such as default  or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the grant ing of a
concession that, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficult ies.

Financial assets which have been re-scheduled or modified are no longer considered to be
past due and are replaced on performing status when all principal and interest payments are
up to date and future payments are reasonably assured. Financial assets that have been re-
scheduled, are subject to on-going review to determine whether they remain impaired or can
be considered due.

Derecognit ion of financial assets
PADICO derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substant ially all the r isks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another ent ity. If PADICO neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and cont inues to control the transferred
asset, PADICO recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it  may have to pay. If PADICO retains substant ially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, PADICO continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Interest  bearing loans and borrowings
At init ial recognit ion, loans & borrowings are recognized at fair value net of direct ly
attributable transact ion costs. After init ial recognit ion, interest bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amort ised cost using the effect ive interest rate method.

Amort ised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisit ion
and fee or costs that are an integral part  of the Effect ive Interest Rate (EIR). The EIR
amort isation is included in finance cost in the consolidated income statement.
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Debt  bonds
After the init ial recognit ion at fair value, debt bonds are subsequently measured at amortized
cost  using the effective interest rate method. All costs incurred by PADICO for issuing the
bonds are amortized over a period of five years.

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed by the supplier or not.

Cash and short -term deposit s
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash on hand, bank balances, and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, net of restr icted bank deposits.

Of fset t ing of f inancial inst ruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial posit ion if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal r ight to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intent ion to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and sett le the liabilit ies simultaneously.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the bank has an obligation (legal or construct ive) ar ising from
a past event, and the costs to sett le the obligation are both probable and can be reliably
measured.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares are stated at cost. Any gains or losses result ing from reissuing of these
shares are recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Foreign currency
PADICO consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. $, which is also the parent
company’s functional currency. PADICO’s subsidiaries determine their own functional
currency. Items included in the financial statements of each ent ity are measured using
subsidiaries’ funct ional currency.

Transact ions and balances
Transact ions in foreign currencies are init ially recorded by PADICO’s subsidiaries at their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the t ransaction.

Monetary assets and liabilit ies denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
funct ional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are
taken to the consolidated income statement with the except ion for financial assets designated
as at FVTOCI were any foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

PADICO subsidiaries
The assets and liabilit ies of PADICO’s subsidiaries with functional currency other than U.S. $
are translated into U.S. $ at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their
income statements at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The exchange
differences arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit  for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit  attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that  would be issued on the
conversion of all the dilut ive potent ial ordinary shares into ordinary shares less treasury
shares.

4. Business Combinat ion

4.1 Disposal of a subsidiary during t he year
In January 2019, PADICO sold 50% of its investment in Jericho Gate for Real Estate
Investment (a subsidiary) to Palest ine Telecommunication Company (associate company).
Consequently, PADICO’s investment in Jericho Gate decreased to 25% and it  lost its control of
the subsidiary. Accordingly, Jericho Gate’s financial statements were not consolidated with
PADICO’s consolidated financial statements for the year of 2019. The deal amounted to JOD
26 million (U.S. $ 37 million). This resulted in a gain of U.S. $ 17,069,000 recorded in the
consolidated income statement.

PADICO’s management believes that it still has representat ion in Jericho Gate’s Board of
Directors and the ability to influence PADICO’s financial and operat ing policies. Therefore, the
remaining investment in Jericho Gate has been classified as investment in associate.
PADICO’s remaining investment in Jericho Gate has been revalued, and unrealized gains in an
amount of U.S. $ 13,571,000 have been recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Following is the fair value of assets and liabilit ies of Jericho Gate at the date of disposal:

Fair values at
the date of

disposal
Assets U.S. $ (000’s)
Property, plant and equipment 315
Propert ies under development 116,216
Accounts receivables 3,553
Other current assets 1,031
Cash and cash equivalents 202

121,317
Liabilit ies
Loans and credit  facilit ies 1,020
Deferred tax liabilit ies 9,864
Provision for employees’ indemnity 54
Accounts and notes payable 750
Deferred revenues 1,615
Income tax provision 193

13,496
Net  Assets 107,821
PADICO’s share of the fair value of net assets (25%) 26,955
Carrying value of PADICO’s remaining investment in Jericho Gate (25%) (13,384)
Change in fair value of PADICO's remaining investment  recognized in the

consolidated income st atement 13,571
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Following is the movement on the non-controlling interest account during the year:

December
31,2019

U.S. $ (000’s)

Beginning balance for t he year 93,696
Non-controlling interest share of results of operat ions for the year 1,286
Non-controlling interest share of other comprehensive income items 1,653
Non-controlling interest share of distributed cash dividends )1,005 (
Change in non-controlling interest 3,966
Disposal of non-controlling interest –Jericho Gate )23,808 (
Ending balance for t he year 75,788

4.2 Disposal of a subsidiary during 2018
At the beginning of the year 2018, PIIC (a subsidiary of PADICO) sold its entire share in
Ithmaar for Plast ic Industries Company (Ithmaar). Accordingly, Ithmaar's financial statements
were not consolidated with the consolidated financial statements of PIIC for the year ended
December 31, 2018.

PIIC has derecognized the carrying amount of Ithmaar's assets and liabilit ies and the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests in accordance with IFRS 10 on the date of loss of control
at the beginning of 2018, result ing in losses of US $ 146,000 recorded in the consolidated
income statement.
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5. Material Part ly-owned Subsidiary
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are provided
below:

Proport ion of equit y interest  held by non-cont rolling interests:

Name
Country of

incorporat ion 2019 2018
%

Palestine Real Estate Investment Company Palestine 23.25 24.29
Palestine Industrial Investment Company Palestine 43.28 43.28
Palestine Securities Exchange Company Palestine 25.28 25.28
Jericho Gate for Real Estate Investment (note 4) Palestine - 50

Accumulated balances of  mat erial non-cont rolling interests: 2019 2018
U.S 000’s

Palestine Real Estate Investment Company 12,315 14,937
Palestine Industrial Investment Company 37,376 31,315
Palestine Securities Exchange Company 2,028 2,055
Jericho Gate for Real Estate Investment (note 4) - 23,808

(losses) Profit s allocated t o material non-cont rolling interests:
Palestine Real Estate Investment Company (2,350) (514)
Palestine Industrial Investment Company 3,419 2,102
Palestine Securities Exchange Company 53 (4)
Jericho Gate for Real Estate Investment (Note 4) - (210)

Other comprehensive income to material non-cont rolling interest s:
Palestine Real Estate Investment Company (16) (2)
Palestine Industrial Investment Company 1,647 (1,326)
Palestine Securities Exchange Company 21 (5)

Change of mat erial subsidiaries non-cont rolling interests:
Palestine Real Estate Investment Company (257) 303
Palestine Industrial Investment Company 1,897 197
Jericho Gate for Real Estate Investment (note 4) (23,808) -
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The summarized financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This
information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminat ions.

Summarized Statement  of Financial Posit ion as at December 31, 2019:

U.S 000’s

Palestine
Real Estate
Investment
Company

Palest ine
Industrial

Investment
Company

Palest ine
Securit ies
Exchange
Company

Jericho Gate
for Real
Estate

Investment
Company

Current assets 29,827 36,906 7,454 -
Non-current assets 87,914 82,265 6,052 -
Current liabilit ies (29,303) (19,727) (317) -
Non-current liabilit ies (26,851) (24,592) (1,067) -
Total equit y 61,587 74,852 12,122 -
Attributable to non-

controlling interests in
PADICO 12,315 37,376 2,028 -

Summarized St atement  of Financial Posit ion as at December 31, 2018:

U.S 000’s

Palest ine
Real Estate
Investment
Company

Palest ine
Industrial

Investment
Company

Palest ine
Securit ies
Exchange
Company

Jericho Gate
for Real
Estate

Investment
Company

Current assets 35,970 29,880 ,5807 3,343
Non-current assets 93,588 63274, 5,595 52,211
Current liabilit ies (29,111) (15,928) (395) (3,527)
Non-current liabilit ies (31,548) (24,214) (941) (105)
Total equit y 68,899 64,370 11,839 51,922
Attributable to non-

controlling interests in
PADICO 14,937 31,315 2,055 23,808
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Summarized Statement  of Prof it  or Loss for t he year ended December 31, 2019

U.S 000’s

Palest ine
Real Estate
Investment
Company

Palest ine
Industr ial

Investment
Company

Palest ine
Securities
Exchange
Company

Jericho Gate
for Real
Estate

Investment
Company

Revenues 7,219 62,873 1,915 -
Operat ing expenses and

costs (7,159) (48,907) (1,962) -
General, administrat ive

and market ing expenses (1,628) (6,272) - -
Finance costs (1,788) (1,569) - -
Other (expenses) revenues (6,210) 1,855 706 -
(loss) profit  before t ax (9,566) 7,980 659 -
Income tax recovery

(expense) 10 (796) (63) -
(loss) profit  for the year (9,556) 7,184 596 -
Other comprehensive

income items (67) 3,433 85 -
Net  comprehensive income

for the year (9,623) 10,617 681 -
Attributable to non-

controlling interests in
PADICO (2,350) 3,419 53 -

Summarized Statement  of Prof it  or Loss for t he year ended December 31, 2018

U.S 000’s

Palest ine
Real Estate
Investment
Company

Palestine
Industrial

Investment
Company

Palest ine
Securit ies
Exchange
Company

Jericho Gate
for Real
Estate

Investment
Company

Revenues 4,343 57,891 2,331 383
Operat ing expenses and
costs (6,553) (49,742) (2,432) (235)

General, administrative
and market ing expense (1,886) (5,643)  - (530)

Finance costs (2,060) (1,176)  - (1)

Other revenues 135 3,988 617 59
(loss) profit  before t ax (6,021) 5,318 516 (324)
Income tax expense 463 (384) (96)  -
(loss) profit  for the year (5,558) 344,9 420 (324)
Other comprehensive
income it ems (10) (2,723) (54)  -

Net  comprehensive income
for t he year (5,568) 2,211 366 (324)

Attributable to non-
controlling interests in
PADICO (514) 2,102 (4) (210)
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Summarized Cash flow informat ion for year ended December 31, 2019:

U.S 000’s

Palestine
Real Estate
Investment
company

Palestine
Industrial

Investment
company

Palestine
Securit ies
exchange
company

Jericho Gate
for Real
Estate

Investment
Company

Operating activities 4,859 7,246 61 -

Invest ing activit ies (4,691) (2,305) 355 -

Financing activities (768) 442 (552) -
Net (decrease) increase
in cash and cash
equivalents (600) 5,383 (136) -

Summarized Cash flow informat ion for year ended December 31, 2018:

U.S 000’s

Palestine
Real Estate
Investment
company

Palestine
Industrial

Investment
company

Palestine
Securit ies
exchange
company

Jericho Gate
for Real
Estate

Investment
Company

Operat ing activities 5,639 3,528 700 1,175
Invest ing activit ies (1,609) (3,958) (1,134) (2,086)
Financing activities (3,614) (2,209) (599) 1,007
Net increase (decrease)
in cash and cash
equivalents 416 (2,639) (1,033) 96
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7. Intangible Assets
U.S. $ 000’s

Goodwill
(A)

Trademark
(B)

Right-of-use
(commercial
complex) (C)

Right-of-use
(bus

stations) (D) Total
Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2019 3,516 3,888 29,676 8,180 45,260
Transferred from projects in

progress (Note 9) - - 175 - 175
Balance as at December 31,

2019 3,516 3,888 29,851 8,180 45,435

Amort izat ion
Balance as at January 1, 2019 - - 3,522 ,4517 10,973
Amort izat ion for the year - - 1,196 219 1,415
Impairment of intangibles - - 2,003 - 2,003
Balance as at December 31,

2019 - - 6,721 7,670 14,391

Net  book value
As at December 31, 2019 3,516 3,888 23,130 510 31,044
As at December 31, 2018 3,516 3,888 26,154 729 34,287

(A) Goodwill
This item represents goodwill from purchase of shares of Palest ine Securities Exchange (a
subsidiary of PADICO) and the shares of Palestine Company for the Establishment and
Management of Industrial Zones - PIEDCO Gaza (a subsidiary of PIEDCO) resulting from the
difference between the purchase cost and PADICO's share of the net fair value of the assets and
liabilities at the date of purchase.

(B) Trademark
This item represents intangible assets that were recognized and recorded after completing the
purchase price allocat ion of Al Pinar Business combinat ion, the ent ire amount of which is
attributed to PINAR’s Trademark.

(C) Right -of-use (commercial complex)
In 2016, PRICO (a subsidiary) signed an investment agreement with the Ministry of Awkaf and
Religious Affairs for the purpose of establishing a commercial complex and benefit ing from it  for
a period of 9 years beginning on June 1, 2016 and ending on May 31, 2025. During the year
2017, PADICO completed the construct ion and processing of the commercial complex with an
amount U.S $ 3,011,000, therefore it was reclassified to intangible assets (leasing rights). This
project is amort ized over a period of 9 years.

During the year and prior years, The Jericho Agro-Industrial Park - JAIP (a subsidiary of PRICO)
completed the construction and preparation of the first  phase of the agricultural industrial city
project in Jericho and therefore it  was transferred to intangible assets account (leasing rights).
The project is amortized over a period of 45 years.
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On November 2, 1995, PRICO (a subsidiary) signed a lease contract with the Palest inian
National Authority to rent a piece of land for a period of 49 years for tourism investment
purposes. During the year 2015, PADICO completed the construct ion of the project (Blue
beach hotel) with an amount of U.S. $ 17,892,722 and transferred it  to leasing rights. The
project cost is amortized over the remaining term of the lease, which expires on October 20,
2044. During the year, the Company conducted an analysis of impairment on its leasing right
from Blue beach project resulted in an impairment loss in an amount U.S $ 2,003,000
recorded in the consolidated income statement.
This item also includes the costs incurred by PIEDCO-Gaza for the right-to lease the industrial
zone in Gaza from the Palestinian National Authority. The cost of leasing the industrial area is
amort ized over 20 years from 1 January 1999.

(D) Right -to-use (bus st at ions)
During 2000, PRICO (a subsidiary) completed the construct ion and full operat ion of both Al
Bireh Central Bus Station and Bethlehem Tourist ic Bus station. Under the terms of concession
agreements with Al Bireh and Bethlehem Municipalit ies’, PRICO financed the construct ions on
a basis of Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) on land owned by the municipalit ies, in return,
PRICO would have the right to operate the Al Bireh and Bethlehem stat ions for 24 (including
two years of implementation) and 15 years (extended to two addit ional years), respect ively.
At the end of the concession period, PRICO would transfer the stations, including all r ights, to
the municipalit ies. These stat ions include bus and car parking as well as a company of stores,
offices and leisure facilit ies. Intangible assets represent the right to charge fees for public
services provided under the terms of the confession agreements. During the year 2017,
PRICO transferred Bethlehem stat ion to Bethlehem municipality after the end of the
investment period in April 2017.

Impairment  test ing of goodwill and t rademark
Goodwill acquired through business combinat ions has been allocated to cash generat ing units,
which are also the reportable business segments of PADICO, for impairment test ing as
follows:

U.S. $ 000’s
2019 2018

Financial market segment 1,445 1,445
Real estate segment 2,071 2,071
Industr ial segment 3,888 3,888

7,404 7,404



119118

35

Key assumptions used in the calculation of the value in use
The calculat ions of the value in use are most sensit ive to the discount rate used and growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget  period:
Discount  rate
Discount rate reflects management 's estimates of business-related risks, taking into account
the time value as well as the r isks specific to assets not included in the cash flow estimates.
The calculation of the discount rate is based on factors related to PADICO and the business
sector and is derived from the weighted average cost of capital. The calculat ion of the
weighted average cost of capital is based on the cost of lending and the cost of capital. The
cost  of capital is calculated based on the expected return on investment and the calculation of
the borrowing cost is based on the interest-bearing borrowings of PADICO to which PADICO
committed to repay. The risks to the segment are included with beta transactions separately.
Beta t ransact ions are evaluated annually using available market information.

Growt h rate est imates
Growth rates are based on the value of the business segment’s operations after the explicit
budget period. In determining appropriate growth rates, regard has been given to the
competit ive forces that are expected to prevail after the explicit  budget period.

With regard to the assessment to the “ value in use”  of all business segments, management
believes that no reasonable possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause
the carrying value of the business segments to materially exceed its value in use.

Financial market  segment
The recoverable amount of the financial market segment has been determined based on the
“value in use”  calculation using the discounted cash flow method based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 18.4%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a 2% growth rate.

Real estate segment
The recoverable amount of the real estate segment has been determined based on the “ value
in use”  calculat ion using the discounted cash flow method based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to cash flow project ions is 16.30%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a 3% growth rate.

Indust rial Segment
The recoverable amount of the industrial segment has been determined based on the “ value
in use”  calculat ion using the discounted cash flow method based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to cash flow project ions is 15%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a 2.7% growth rate.
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8.  Investment  Propert ies
Investments properties as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 includes the following:

U.S. $ 000’s
2019 2018

Lands* 22,805 73,655
Buildings** 21,961 22,277

44,766 95,932

* This item includes PADICO and its subsidiaries’ investments in lands held for the purpose of
increasing its value. Therefore, they were classified as investment properties.

**  This item includes the investment of Marafeq Investment Company (a subsidiary of PRICO)
in Plaza Park Centre for Car Parking. During 2007, an agreement was signed between Al-
Marafiq for Construct ion and Operation Company (a subsidiary) and Municipality of Amman
to establish a commercial complex including a building and parking area in the Sweifieh
area in Amman on the Build Operat ion Transfer (B.O.T) basis on land owned by the
Municipality of Amman in return for the rental and operat ion of the building and parking for
25 years, not including the implementat ion period, after which, the building and parking
will be delivered to the Municipality of Amman. On 23 January 2017, Al-Marafiq Company
signed an annex to the agreement with the Greater Amman Municipality, st ipulat ing an
increase in the investment period to 30 years start ing on October 1, 2010.

The fair value of the lands and buildings as at December 31, 2019 amounted to U.S. $
52,597,669 and as at  December 31, 2018 amounted to U.S. $ 208,543,567. (which included
investment properties for Jericho Gate which were derecognized during 2019 (note 4)).

The carrying value of investment properties which were mortgaged for the benefit  of banks as
collateral against loans to PRICO and PIIC is approximately U.S. $ 7,121,819 (Note 20).

Following is the movement on the investment propert ies

U.S. $ 000’s
2019 2018

Balance, beginning of t he year 95,932 95,443
Addit ions 10 1,971
Transferred from (to) inventory and ready for sale properties
(note 12) 1,032 (1,664)
Transferred from property, plant and equipment (note 6) - 1,199
Sales - (236)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 4) (50,454) -
Amortization (829) (781)
Impairment of investment propert ies (925) -
Balance, end of year 44,766 95,932
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9.Project s in Progress
U.S. $ 000’s

2019 2018
Balance, beginning of t he year 12,007 9,915
Addit ions 7,857 6,201
Transferred to intangible assets (note 7) (175) (2,097)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment (note 6) (5,654) (1,457)
Foreign currency 393 (555)
Balance, end of year 14,428 12,007

During the year, The Jericho Agro-Industrial Park - JAIP (a subsidiary of PRICO) completed
the construct ion and preparation work related to a sect ion of the Agro-industrial city project
in Jericho. Therefore, it  was t ransferred to intangible assets (leasing rights).

Following are the projects in progress as at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

U.S. $ 000’s
Cost

Project  Name Company 2019 2018
Solar system project PRICO for operat ions and maintenance 5,186 787
Al-Sharafat project TAICO for trade and Investment Company 4,970 4,694
Factory and headquarters
construct ion project Al Pinar General Trading 2,752 1,594
Factory and headquarters
construct ion project

Al-Rabiya for Feed and Grains
590 -

Raising chicken project Palestine Poultry Company PLC 503 -
Purchasing and

implementing
computerized systems Palestine Securit ies Exchange 250 247

Jericho project to develop
an Agro-Industrial park Jericho Agro-Industr ial Park - 57

Dairy cows’ farm project Palestine Poultry Company PLC - 4,135
Others Other Companies 177 493

14,428 12,007

The remaining costs to complete these projects are expected to reach a total of
U.S. $ 37,892,007 and the projects are expected to be completed in 2 - 6 years.
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10. Investment  in Associat es
This item represents investments in associates as follows:

� PADICO mortgaged part of its investments in associates to the benefit  of local and
regional banks. The carrying value of the mortgaged shares as at December 31, 2019
amounted to U.S. $ 124,193,945 (note 20). In addit ion, a port ion of the shares in
associates were mortgaged to the debt bonds holders. The carrying amount of the
mortgaged shares as of December 31, 2019 amounted to U.S. $ 177,759,230
(note 21).

� Although PADICO’s ownership percentage in Golden Wheat Mills Company and Jordan
Vegetable Oil Industry Company is less than 20%, PADICO has representat ion in these
associates’ board of directors that can influence the financial and operat ing policies of
these companies. Accordingly, PADICO investments in these companies are classified as
investment in associates.

� The market value of PADICO's listed associates amounted to U.S. $ 275,017,691 as at
December 31, 2019.

Following is a movement on investment in associates during 2019 and 2018:

Country of
origin

Ownership %
U.S. $ 000’s

Carrying Amount
2019 2018 2019 2018

Palest ine Telecommunicat ions Company (Listed) Palest ine 31.41 31.41 335,135 341,279
Jericho Gate for Real Estate Investment (Not
listed) (note 4) Palest ine 25.00 - 25,645 -

Vegetable Oil Indust ries Company (Listed) Palest ine 32.80 32.80 19,287 17,069
Golden Wheat Mills Company (Listed) Palest ine 19.41 19.41 3,914 3,674
Jordan Vegetable Oil Indust ry Company (Listed) Jordan 17.00 17.00 2,000 1,950
PAL Aqar for Real Estate Company (listed) Palest ine 25.02 25.02 449 456
Palest ine Power Generat ing Company (Not listed)  Palest ine 20.00 20.00 3,127 3,236
Mawaqef investment  company (Not listed) Jordan 49.00 49.00 - -
Al-Kubra for waste company Palest ine 25.00 25.00 - 186

389,557 367,850

2019 2018
U.S. $ 000’s U.S. $ 000’s

Balance, beginning of t he year – before adjustments 367,850 ,187400
Effect of adopting IFRS 9 - (42,179)
Balance, beginning of t he year – af ter adjustments 367,850 358,008
Share in associates' results of operat ion 33,471 32,913
Cash dividends from associates (24,625) (24,582)
Share in associates’ cumulat ive change in fair value of financial assets (5,786) 2,401
Share in associates’ foreign currency translat ion 970 (945)
Transferred from investments in subsidiaries (note 4) 13,384 -
Unrealized gains due to revaluat ion (note 4) 13,571 -
Disposal of gains from associates (9,092) -
Purchases of associates shares - 55
Impairment on investments in associates (186) -
Balance, end of the year 389,557 367,850
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11. Financial Assets at  Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Quoted equit ies in financial markets 68,499 65,840
Unquoted equit ies in financial markets* 16,859 16,245

85,358 82,085

* PADICO believes that these investments are of a strategic nature and are therefore
classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Based on some long-term loan agreements, part of the financial assets was mortgaged by
PADICO for local and regional banks. The carrying value of properties mortgaged is amounted
to U.S $ 9,145,450 as at 31 December 2019 (note 20).

Following is the movement on the fair value reserve:
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Balance, beginning of year – before adjustments (45,084) (46,443)
Effect of adopting IFRS 9 - 1,594
Balance, beginning of year – after adjustments (45,084) (44,849)
Net losses in fair value of financial assets (10,016) (235)
Balance, end of year (55,100) (45,084)

12.  Invent ories and Ready for Sale Propert ies
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Land and ready for sale propert ies* 16,723 21,300
Feed mill, eggs, poultry, dates and diary products 6,725 7,126
Biological assets –mature and producing 1,110 1,216
Biological assets – immature 992 863
Carton sheets and cans 678 712
Operational goods for hotels 251 399
Plastic stock 72 -
Sundry 456 576

27,007 32,192

* Based on some loans’ agreements signed by PRICO, part of the ready for sale propert ies of
Al Ghadeer and PRICO House (2) projects were mortgaged. The carrying amount of
propert ies mortgaged amounted to U.S $ 10,444,018 as at 31 December 2019 (note 20).
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13.Accounts receivables and other current  assets
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Trade receivables 40,328 38,680
Checks under collection 24,353 24,920
Due from Value Added Tax 6,281 6,263
Prepayments to suppliers, contractors and brokerage firms 4,603 2,165
Due from associates and sister companies 3,768 1,941
Prepaid expenses 510 655
Other receivables 1,522 1,404

81,365 76,028
Provision for expected credit  losses* (31,516) (28,248)

49,849 47,780
Long term accounts receivable (7,093) (8,939)

42,756 38,841

* Following is the movement on the provision for expected credit  losses during the years
2019 and 2018:

U.S.$000’s
2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year – before adjustments 28,248 15,929
Effect of adopting IFRS 9 - 11,500
Balance, beginning of year – after adjustments 28,248 27,429
Addit ions during the year (note 33) 3,254 2,398
Recoveries during the year (note 33) (67) (1,151)

Write-offs (426) -
Currency variance 507 (428)
Balance, end of year 31,516 24828,

PADICO management does not obtain collaterals against some receivables. As for notes and
accounts receivable result ing from sale of real estate, PADICO does not transfer ownership of
the sold properties unless the selling price is wholly recovered.

14. Financial assets at  Fair Value Through Profit  or Loss
This item represents the following:

U.S. $ 000’s
2019 2018

Investment funds 1,114 3,829
Investments port folio in local and regional equit ies 6,517 7,849

7,631 11,678
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15. Cash and Short -Term Deposit s
U.S. $ 000’s

2019 2018
Cash on hand and current accounts at banks 9,889 6,441
Term deposits at banks 6,663 726

16,552 7,167

Term deposits at banks as at December 31, 2019 include deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The average interest rates on deposits in U.S. $ ranges between 3.5%
and 4%.

Term deposits at banks include restricted cash of U.S. $ 728,000 and U.S. $ 382,000 as a
collateral against certain credit  facilit ies and debit bonds granted to PADICO and its
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 (note 20 and 21).

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following:

U.S. $ 000’s
2019 2018

Cash on hand and current accounts at banks 9,889 6,441
Term deposits at banks 6,663 726

16,552 7,167
Restricted cash (note 20) (728) (382)

15,824 6,785

16. Paid-in Share Capital
Paid-in share capital as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 as follows:

U.S. $ 000’s
2019 2018

Authorized capital 300,000 300,000
Subscribed and paid in capital 250,000 250,000

PADICO authorized paid-in capital compromises from 300 million share. The par value per
share is U.S. $ 1.

17. Treasury Shares
This item represents the net cost of the treasury shares as a result of consolidating the
financial statements of PADICO and its subsidiaries.

18. Reserves

Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve amounted to U.S. $ 30,775,000 and U.S. $ 28,158,0000 as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. PADICO’s By-Laws require a deduction of 5%
before consolidation of the net annual profit  to be appropriated to statutory reserve account
unt il such reserve balance reaches 40% of the authorized share capital. The reserve is not
available for distribution to the shareholders.
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Furthermore, in accordance with the companies’ Articles of Association and the Companies’
Law in Palestine, a deduct ion of 10% of the net annual profit is to be appropriated to a
statutory reserve account. The reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders.

Voluntary reserve
Voluntarily reserve amounted to U.S. $ 1,594,000 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. This
reserve is available for distr ibution to the shareholders.

19.Dist ributed Cash Dividends

Cash dividends dist r ibuted from subsidiaries in 2019
PIIC’s (a subsidiary) General Assembly decided in its meeting held on April 17, 2019 a cash
dividend distribut ion of JD 0.06 per share, which amounted to U.S. $ 1,587,000. Non-
controlling interest’s share of the dividends was U.S. $ 687,000.

PSE’s (a subsidiary) General Assembly decided in its meeting held on April 9, 2019 a cash
dividend distribution of USD 0.04 per share, which amounted to U.S. $ 400,000. Non-
controlling interest’s share of the dividends was U.S. $ 101,000.

Palestine Poultry Company’s (a subsidiary of PIIC) General Assembly decided in its meeting
held on April 17, 2019 a cash dividend distribut ion of JD 0.10 per share, which amounted to
U.S. $ 1,896,000. Non-controlling interest’s share of the dividends was U.S. $ 217,000.

Cash dividends dist r ibuted from subsidiaries in 2018
PIIC’s (a subsidiary) General Assembly decided in its meeting held on April 25, 2018 a cash
dividend distribut ion of JD 0.10 per share, which amounted to U.S. $ 2,644,500. Non-
controlling interest’s share of the dividends was U.S. $ 1,144,000.

PSE’s (a subsidiary) General Assembly decided in its meeting held on April 17, 2018 a cash
dividend distribut ion of JD 0.06 per share, which amounted to U.S. $ 600,000. Non-
controlling interest’s share of the dividends was U.S. $ 152,000.

Palestine Poultry Company’s (a subsidiary of PIIC) General Assembly decided in its meeting
held on April 25, 2018 a cash dividend distribution of U.S $ 0.18 per share, which amounted
to U.S. $ 2,843,366. Non-controlling interest ’s share of the dividends was U.S. $ 326,000.

20. Long-term Loans, Credit  Facilit ies and Islamic Financing
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Long term loans from banks and financial inst itutions 113,828 121,495
Long term loans from related parties 2,632 972,1
Overdraft  accounts 3,950 29,180
Murabaha and Istusna’a contracts 16,728 19,052

137,138 171,924
Credit  facilit ies, financing and current port ion of long-term loans (36,872) (55,864)

100,266 116,060
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Loans, credit  facilit ies and Islamic financing maturit ies are as follows:
U.S. $000’s

Mature in         2020 36,872
Mature in         2021 32,620
Mature in         2022 17,667
Mature in         2023 16,516
Matures later 33,463

137,138

Long-term loans granted from banks and financial inst it ut ions
� PADICO and its subsidiaries signed several long-term loan agreements with local and

regional banks in U.S. Dollars and Jordanian Dinars. These loans are subject to a variable
interest rates between 2% and 4.15% in addit ion to LIBOR, and to a fixed interest rate
between 4% and 8.75%.  These loans are to be settled within a six-years period. The
balance of outstanding loans amounted to U.S. $ 78,474,000 and U.S. $ 88,053,000 as
at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respect ively.

� On April 4, 2017, Nakheel Palest ine (a subsidiary) signed a financing agreement with the
French Agency “ Financial Institution Working for the Private Sector and Sustainable
Development”  (Proparco) for an amount of U.S. $ 10,000,000 to finance the purchase of
Al-Sultan Fresh Fruits Company shares. The loan is subject for a variable interest rate of
4.4% in addit ion to LIBOR rates thereafter will be annual interest rate is fixed at 6.098%.
The loan to be sett led in 15 semi-annual installments starting June 15, 2020. The
balance of outstanding loans amounted to U.S. $ 10,000,000 as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

� During the year and previous years, PIIC and its subsidiaries signed loan agreements with
local and regional banks in U.S. Dollars at variable interest rates of 2.5% and 4% in
addit ion to LIBOR rates, and fixed interest rates ranging from 3.75% and 5%. These loans
were obtained for the purpose of financing the investment activities and financing needs
of these companies. These loans are also repayable under monthly, quarterly and semi-
annual installments. The balance of existing loans amounted to U.S. $ 25,354,000 and
U.S. $ 23,422,000 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Long-term loans granted from related part ies
� During the past years, JEDICO’s subsidiaries (a subsidiary) signed loan agreements with

some shareholders to cover their f inancial needs for an amount of U.S. $ 1,125,000 as at
December 31, 2019 and $ 2,197,000 as at December 31, 2018. These loans are subject
to an annual interest rate between 5% and 7.5% and are sett led in quarterly installments.

� During the year, Nakheel Palestine (a subsidiary) signed loan agreements with some
major shareholders for the purpose of covering the financial needs of the company. The
value of the loans amounted to U.S $ 1,300,000 as of December 31, 2019. These loans
are subject for a variable interest rate of 4.4% in addit ion to LIBOR rates and are paid in
one installment after two years from the date of signing the agreements.

� During the year, JAIP (a subsidiary of PRICO) signed loan agreements with some major
shareholders for the purpose of covering the financial needs of the company. The value
of loans amounted to U.S $ 207,000 as of December 31, 2019. The loans are subject for
a variable interest rate of 6.5% and are also payable under quarterly installments.
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Overdraft s
� �PADICO and some of its subsidiaries have received overdraft accounts and facilit ies for

clearing checks deducted from local and regional banks in US Dollars, Jordanian Dinars
and Israeli Shekels. The total amount as at December 31, 2019 was U.S. $ 11,076,000
and the balance ut ilized from these facilit ies amounted to U.S. $ 3,950,000. These
facilit ies are subject to variable interest rates ranging from 4.5% to 8.5%.

Murabaha and Istusna’a
� During the previous years, PADICO was granted Murabaha financing from banks and local

financial institut ions with a total ceiling amounting to U.S. $ 15,000,000 as at December
31, 2018. These Murabaha agreements are subject to an annual profit  margin of 5%.

� In addit ion, PRICO signed an Istusna’a agreement during 2014 with one of the local banks
for an amount of U.S $ 3 million subject to an annual fixed profit margin of 4.5%. The
installments are paid after the completion of the preparation phase and the passage of an
addit ional grace period for the project.

� During previous years, Nakheel Palest ine (a subsidiary) has signed Murabaha agreements
with a local financial institution at an annual rate between 3% and 5%. The payment of the
agreement is made over a period of 6 years starting in 2017.

� During 2018, the National Carton Industry Co. (a subsidiary of PIIC) signed a short-term
Murabaha agreement with a local financial institut ion in an amount of U.S. $ 500,000 for
the purpose of purchasing raw materials. This Murabaha agreement is subject to an
annual fixed profit  margin of 4.5% and to be sett led in three installments after a grace
period of 3 months. The utilized balance of these facilit ies amounted to U.S. $
16,728,000 and U.S. $ 19,052,000 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, resspectively.

These loans and facilit ies were obtained by mortgaging assets with a book value of U.S.
$228,917,554, a check guarantee of U.S. $ 321,000 and cash margins of U.S. $ 728,000 as
at 31 December 2019. The following table shows the mortgaged assets as of 31 December
2019:

Item
Book value of

collaterals Note
Property, plant and equipment 34,135,273 Note (6)
Investment propert ies 7,121,819 Note (8)
Investments in associates 124,193,945 Note (10)
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 9,145,450 Note (11)
Inventory and ready for sale propert ies 10,444,018 Note (12)
Investments in subsidiaries 43,877,049 -
Total 228,917,554
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21.Debt  Bonds
During August 2016, PADICO issued 240 debt bonds with a nominal amount of
U.S. $ 500,000. The bonds were underwrit ten in full with a fixed annual interest rate of 5%
for the first  36 months, and an annual interest rate of 3% plus six months LIBOR for the
remaining 24 months with a minimum of 5%. The interest is to be paid at the end of each six
months start ing February 15, 2017 and the bonds principle is to be paid in one installment
after five years from the issuing date of August 2021. These debt bonds were issued to repay
the amount of the previous debt bonds of U.S. $ 85 Million that matured on September 15,
2016 as well as finance PADICO’s future projects and activit ies. Accordingly, PADICO
mortgaged shares in subsidiaries and associates, total book value of the mortgaged shares
amounted to U.S. $ 213,814,884 as at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

22.Provision for Employees’ Indemnit y
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Balance, beginning of the year 6,201 6,452
Additions during the year 1,053 1,261
Recoveries during the year (149) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 4) (93) -
Payments during the year (1,112) (1,339)
Foreign currency 213 (173)
Balance, end of year 6,113 6,201

23.Ot her Non-current  liabilit ies
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Deferred rent revenues 6,734 6,297
Deferred tax liabilit ies (note 26) 2,036 -
Long term postdated checks 309 3,922
Deferred grants revenues 556 658

9,635 10,877

24.Accounts and Notes Payable
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Trade payables 7,285 10,609
Outstanding checks 6,585 4,960

13,870 15,569
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25.Ot her Current  Liabilit ies
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Accrued interests and expenses 7,192 7,829
Accrued cash dividends 6,413 6,681
Deferred revenues 6,074 6,357
Legal provision 656 225
Contractors’ retentions 635 622
Due to related parties 588 2,203
Employees’ provident fund 446 535
Provision for vacat ion 354 272
Other liabilit ies and provisions 18,374 11,234

40,732 35,958

26.Provision for Income Tax
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Balance, beginning of the year 978 1,031
Provision for the year 1,253 677
Payments during the year (554) (730)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 4) (193) -
Balance, end of t he year 1,484 978

Following are the details for the income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018:

U.S. $000’s
2019 2018

Provision for the year * 1,253 677
Deferred tax ** 2,036 -

3,289 677

* The provision for the year represents subsidiaries’ provisions for their results of operations
for the year 2019. The subsidiaries are working on reaching a final tax sett lement with the
income tax authority on their results of operat ions for several taxable years. Until the date
of the consolidated financial statements, PADICO did not obtain a final tax sett lement on its
results of operat ions in Palest ine for the year 2018. PADICO submitted its tax returns for
the year 2018 and the company's tax advisor is pursing issuing a final tax sett lement with
the tax departments.

**  During the year, PADICO sold 50% of its investment in Jericho Gate for Real Estate
Investment as shown in note (4). The remaining investment in the company was revalued
and classified as an investment in associate and unrealized gains in an amount of U.S $
13,571,000 has been recorded in the consolidated income statement. Also, a deferred tax
liability in an amount of U.S $ 2,036,000 has been recorded as a result of the unrealized
gains.
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Following is a reconciliation summary between taxable income and accounting income:

U.S. $000’s
2019 2018

Accounting income before tax 23,275 16,216
Non-taxable profits (46,915) (29,819)
Nondeduct ible expenses 44,464 18,059
Taxable income 20,824 4,456
Accrued income tax 3,124 668
PADICO’s provision for income tax 3,289 677

27. Revenues from cont racts with cust omers
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Sales of mills, eggs, poult ry, dates and dairy products 68,181 59,407
Operat ing revenues from hotels, restaurants and tourist  facilit ies 12,961 11,323
Sales of carton sheets and cans 3,409 3,779
Revenues of properties and land 2,942 2,506
Securit ies exchange fees and commissions 1,846 2,139
Cars and busses parking revenues 751 781
Revenues from real estate development r ights - 383
Others 64 19

90,154 80,337

Most of PADICO’s revenues are recognized a certain point in t ime at which time the control
over the asset is transferred to the customer.

28. Gains f rom Financial Asset s Port folio
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Dist ributed dividends of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 5,608 981
Dist ributed dividends of financial assets at fair value through

profit  or loss 685 586
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (4,072) 174
2,221 1,741

29. Operat ing Expenses and Costs
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Cost of mills, eggs, poultry, dates and dairy products 47,015 46,722
Operation cost of hotels, restaurants and tourist facilit ies 9,746 648,6
Cost of carton sheets and cans sold 2,853 3,408
Cost of propert ies and land sold 2,308 2,147
Cost of dairy cows’ farm 796 -
Cost of real estate development rights - 235
Cost of plast ic bott les and pipes sold - 4
Other operat ing expenses 2,860 2,970

65,578 64,132
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30. General and Administ rat ive Expenses
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Salaries and related benefits 6,737 6,001
Selling, advertising and public relat ions expenses 2,831 2,685
Consultancy and professional fees 1,142 1,188
Subscript ions, fees and licenses 810 911
Board of directors’ fees and expenses 687 592
Rent and general services 450 1,415
Travel and transportation 409 669
Insurances 362 368
Telephone, fax and courier 218 208
Donat ions and sponsorships 149 167
Conferences, meetings and hospitality 138 158
Stat ionery and print ings 83 82
Others 478 572

14,494 15,016

31. Finance Costs
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Finance costs related to loans, credit  facilit ies and debt bonds 15,167 14,669
Finance costs related to lease liabilit ies (note 3) 611 -

15,778 14,669

32. Depreciat ion and Amort izat ion
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Property plant and equipment 8,365 8,388
Right-of-use assets 1,007 -
Investment properties 829 781
Intangible assets 1,415 0141,

11,616 10,570
Depreciation and amortization allocated to palm trees (notes 3

and 6) (491) (420)
11,125 10,150
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33.Ot her Provisions and Expenses, net
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Impairment on tourism investments (note 6) * (16,187) -
Provision for expected credit  losses, net (note 13) (3,187) (1,247)
Impairment of intangible assets (note 7) (2,003) -
Impairment of inventory and ready for sale propert ies (1,514) (147)
Provision on financial claims from others (1,362) -
Impairment of investment propert ies (note 8) (925) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 6) (868) -
(Losses) gains from sale of property, plant and equipment (464) 125
Lawsuits provision and sett lements (277) -
Impairment of investments in associates (note 10) (186) -
Interest revenues 364 192
Foreign currency revaluat ions 535 368
Others (6,281) (547)

(32,355) (1,256)

*  During the year, PADICO made impairment studies on its various investments in the
tourism sector. As a result  of the indicators of the polit ical and economic situat ions and
the current financial performance of these investments, the Board of Directors of
PADICO decided to take provisions and impairments to reduce the value of the assets
related to these investments.

34. Basic and Dilut ed Earnings Per Share
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Profit  for the year attributable to equity holders of PADICO
(U.S. $ 000’s) 18,700 15,013

Weighted average for subscribed capital during the year
(Shares 000’s) 250,000 250,000

Less: Treasury shares (shares 000’s) (150) (150)
249,850 249,850

Basic and diluted earnings per share (U.S. $ 000’s) 0.07 0.06

35. Related Part ies
Related parties represent associates, major shareholders, Board of Directors members and
key management personnel of PADICO, and ent ities controlled, joint ly controlled or
significant ly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are
approved by PADICO’s Board of Directors.
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Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial posit ion are
as follows:

Nature of Relat ionship
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Consolidated stat ement  of f inancial

posit ion balances:
Accounts receivable and other current

assets
Associates and sister

companies 3,768 1,941

Other current liabilit ies
Associates and sister

companies 588 2,203
Accrued cash dividends Major Shareholders 6,413 6,681
Accrued expenses Shareholders and Members of

the Board of Directors 1,257 1,255

Loans, financing and credit facilit ies
Banks - Members of the Board

of Directors 52,743 84,755
Long term loans Major Shareholders 2,633 2,197

Debt Bonds
Banks - Members of the Board

of Directors 43,000 43,000

Transact ions wit h relat ed part ies included in the consolidated income statement  are as
follows:

Nature of Relat ionship
U.S. $000’s

2019 2018
Realized and unrealized gains from sale
of a subsidiary (note 4) Associate company 30,640 -

Finance costs
Banks - Members of the Board

of Directors and Major
Shareholders 5,824 6,854

Key management personnel and Board
of Directors’ compensations:

Salaries and related expenses 2,252 2,731
End of service expense 117 202
Board of Directors’ fees and expenses 689 592
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36. Fair Value Measurement
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of PADICO’s assets and
liabilit ies. Following are quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets
and liabilit ies as at December 31, 2019:

Fair value Measurement using

Total

Quoted
Prices in
active

markets
(Level 1)

Significant
observable

inputs
(Level2)

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level3)

Date of  Valuation U.S. $000’s
Financial assets measured at  fair

value
Financial assets at fair  value

through other comprehensive
income (note 11):

Quoted December 31, 2019 68,499 68,499 - -
Unquoted December 31, 2019 16,859 - 5,312 11,547

Financial assets at fair  value
through profit  or loss (note 14): December 31, 2019 7,631 6,517 1,114 -

Financial assets for which fair
value is disclosed

Investment properties (note 8) December 31, 2019 52,598 - - 52,598

Following are quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at
December 31, 2018:

Fair value Measurement  using

Total

Quoted
Prices in

active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
observable

inputs
(Level2)

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level3)

Date of  Valuat ion U.S. $000’s
Financial assets measured at  fair

value
Financial assets at fair  value

through other comprehensive
income (note 11):

Quoted December 31, 2018 65,840 65,840 - -
Unquoted December 31, 2018 16,245 - 4,722 11,523

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 14): December 31, 2018 11,678 7,849 3,829 -

Financial assets for which fair
value is disclosed

Investment properties (note 8) December 31, 2018 208,544 - - 208,544
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PADICO uses the following sequence to identify and disclose fair values:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market pr ices in active markets for ident ical assets or
liabilit ies

- Level 2: Valuat ion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3: Valuat ion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly unobservable.

PADICO did not make any transfers between the levels mentioned above during the years
2019 and 2018.

37. Fair Values of Financial Inst rument s
Below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of PADICO’s financial
instruments as at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilit ies are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing part ies, other than in
a forced or liquidat ion sale.

� The fair values of accounts receivable (except for long term accounts receivable), cash
and short-term deposits, credit  facilit ies, accounts and notes payable and other financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturit ies of
these instruments.

� The fair value of long-term accounts receivable is estimated by discounting future cash
flows using rates current ly available for receivables and credit  facilit ies on similar terms.

U.S. $000’s
Carrying amount Fair  value

2019 2018 2019 2018
Financial assets
Accounts receivable and other current
assets 44,736 44,960 44,736 44,960

Financial assets at fair value through
profit  or loss 7,631 11,678 7,631 11,678

Cash and short-term deposits 16,552 7,167 16,552 7,167
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Quoted 68,499 65,840 68,499 65,840
Unquoted 16,859 16,245 16,859 16,245

154,277 145,890 154,277 145,890

Financial liabilit ies
Debt  Bonds 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
Loans and credit  facilit ies 137,138 171,924 137,138 171,924
Lease liabilit ies 9,750 - 9,750 -
Accounts and notes payable 13,870 15,569 13,870 15,569
Other financial liabilit ies 18,844 20,879 18,844 20,879

299,602 328,372 299,602 328,372
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� Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit  or loss and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income that are actively traded in act ive financial
markets is determined by reference to quoted prices at the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

� The fair values of unquoted financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income were determined using appropriate valuation techniques.

� The fair value of loans, debt bonds and lease liabilit ies were est imated by discounting
future cash flows using rates current ly available for debt on similar terms.

38.Risk Management
Financial liabilit ies of PADICO and its subsidiaries comprise long and short-term loans and
borrowings, debt bonds, credit  facilit ies, lease liabilit ies, accounts payable, notes payable and
other financial liabilit ies. The main purpose of these financial liabilit ies is to raise capital for
operations of PADICO and its subsidiaries. In addit ion, PADICO and its subsidiaries have
various financial assets such as accounts receivable, cash and short-term deposits, financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which arise direct ly from PADICO's operat ions.

The main risks arising from PADICO's financial inst ruments are interest rate risk, credit  r isk,
liquidity risk, equity price risk, and foreign currency r isk. PADICO's Board of Directors reviews
and approves policies for managing these risks, which are summarized below:

Interest  rate risk
PADICO's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates relates primarily to PADICO's loans
and borrowings, debt bonds, credit  facilit ies, and short-term deposits with float ing interest
rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of PADICO's consolidated income statement
to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The
effect of decreases in the interest rate is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of
the increase shown:

Increase in
interest

rate

Effect
on profit

before tax

2019
(basis
points) U.S. $000’s

Currency
U.S.$ 20 (369)

Increase in
interest

rate

Effect
on profit

before tax
(basis
points) U.S. $000’s

2018
Currency
U.S.$ 20 (159)
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Credit  r isk
Credit  risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. PADICO is exposed to credit  r isk
from its operating act ivit ies (primarily account receivables) and from its financing and
invest ing act ivit ies, including deposits with banks and financial inst itutions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables:
Customer credit  risk is managed by each business segment unit subject to PADICO’s policies
relating to customer credit risk management. PADICO’s Subsidiaries have a broad-based
number of clients. The credit  risk associated with accounts receivable is widely distributed
among a large number of individual customers. PADICO's subsidiaries limit  credit  risk by
obtaining in-kind guarantees from certain customers and following up collect ion of
receivables by monitoring receivables and in collaborat ion with legal advisors.

An impairment analysis is performed at each report ing date on an individual basis for major
clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into groups and are
assessed for impairment collect ively. The calculat ion involves certain percentages derived
from group of inputs, including historical collect ion patterns, type of customer, services
provided, aging of accounts receivable reports, and default  definition through the number of
days past  due, in addit ion to considering future factors.

The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in note (13).  In addition, PADICO
and its subsidiaries sell most of their ready for sale properties through installments that
mature over several years. PADICO's real estate companies limit  the credit  risk by not
transferring the ownership of the sold propert ies to the customers unt il all the receivables are
paid.

Other financial assets
With respect to credit  risk arising from the other financial assets of PADICO, including Cash
and bank deposits. PADICO's exposure to credit risk arises from default  of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these financial assets.
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Liquidit y risk
PADICO and its subsidiaries limit  its liquidity r isk by ensuring credit  facilit ies are available and
monitoring the collections of accounts receivables and other current assets.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of PADICO's undiscounted consolidated
financial liabilit ies as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, based on their maturity.

U.S. $000’s
On

demand
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

More than
5 years Total

December 31, 2019
Loans, credit  facilities, and debt

bonds 3,376 16,544 34,001 241,090 3,921 298,932
Lease liabilit ies - 66 1,618 4,897 8,991 15,572
Accounts payable, notes payable

and other current  liabilit ies 14,808 8,880 6,492 771 - 30,951
18,184 25,490 42,111 246,758 12,912 345,455

December 31, 2018
Loans, credit  facilities, and debt

bonds 4,744 34,994 31,506 266,633 4,777 342,654
Accounts payable, notes payable
and other current liabilit ies 16,809 7,615 8,102 3,922 - 36,448

21,553 42,609 39,608 270,555 4,777 379,102

Equity price risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income to reasonably possible changes in equity
prices, with all other variables held constant. The effect of decreases in equity prices is
expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown below:

2019

U.S. $000’s
Increase in
equity price

(%)

Effect on
consolidated

income statement
Effect

on equity
Shares listed in Palest ine Securit ies Exchange 10 - 67
Shares listed in Amman Stock Exchange 10 643 6,669
Investment port folios 10 117 111
Shares not  listed in financial markets 10 3 1,686
Others 10 - 3

2018

U.S. $000’s

Increase in
equity price (%)

Effect on
consolidated

income statement
Effect

on equity

Shares listed in Palest ine Securit ies Exchange 10 - 71
Shares listed in Amman Stock Exchange 10 695 6,328
Investment port folios 10 109 183
Shares not  listed in financial markets 10 284 1,624
Others 10 80 3
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Foreign Currency Risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated income statement to a
reasonably possible change in the U.S. $ exchange rate, with all other variables held constant.
The Jordanian Dinar (JOD) is linked to U.S. $ therefore, no effect, result ing from the
fluctuat ions in JOD rate, is expected on the consolidated income statement. The effect of
decrease in foreign currency exchange rate is expected to be equal and opposite to effect of
increase shown below:

Increase in
New Israeli
Shekel to

U.S. $

Effect on
consolidated

income
statement

Increase in
other

currencies
to U.S. $

Effect on
consolidated

income
statement

% U.S. $000’s % U.S. $000’s
2019
U.S.$ 20 457 20 34

2018
U.S.$ 20 278 20 22

Capital management
The primary objective of PADICO's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

PADICO manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
business condit ions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
two years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

PADICO’s capital structure is comprised of paid in capital, share premium, other reserves,
retained earnings, and non-controlling interest after the deduct ion of treasury stocks, with a
total of U.S. $ 470,451,000 as at December 31, 2019 and U.S. $ 476,514,000 as at
December 31, 2018.

39.Concent rat ion of  Risk in Geographic Area
PADICO and its subsidiaries are carrying major part  of their act ivit ies in Palest ine. The
polit ical and economic destabilizat ion in the area increases the r isk of carrying out business
and could adversely affect performance.

40. Commitments and Cont ingent  Liabilit ies

� The unpaid port ion of investment of PADICO and its subsidiaries in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to U.S. $ 40,309 and U.S. $ 90,670 as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively.

� During the previous years, PRICO (a subsidiary) signed a partnership and investment
agreements with Governmental Authorit ies (Ramallah Municipality, Ministry of Awaqf and
Ministry of Public Works and Housing) under which investment projects are developed
and established during the different periods of investments. The current annual
contractual commitments related to those agreements amounted to U.S. $ 332,984. This
amount is subject to change as a result  of the complet ion of current investment contracts
and entering into new partnerships and signing new contracts.
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� The contractual commitments resulting from contracts and agreements signed with
suppliers in relat ion to PADICO’s and its subsidiaries projects amounted to U.S. $
5,754,535, as at the date of the consolidated financial statements. This amount
represents the difference between the total contract value and the completed amount as
at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

� There have been several lawsuits against PADICO’s subsidiaries with an amount of U.S. $
27,609,147 which are within the normal course of business. PADICO’s management and
their  legal advisors believe that provisions recorded against those lawsuits are sufficient
for expected results.

� PADICO and its subsidiaries have entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property port folio and intangible assets. These non-cancellable leases have
remaining terms between 6 and 11 years.

Following is a schedule showing the minimum value of non-cancellable lease values:

U.S. $000’s
2019 2018

Within one year 4,407 4,407
After one year but less than five years 16,598 16,598
More than five years 80,607 84,640

101,612 105,645
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42. Comparat ive Figures
Certain comparat ive figures of the prior year consolidated financial statements were
reclassified to conform to the current year presentat ion for the year ended December 31,
2019. These reclassificat ions had no effect on the net income and equity of prior years.

43. Subsequent  events

Subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements, and as a result  of the
continued effect of the Corona Virus (COVID 19) on the global economy and the different
business sectors, and the accompanying measures and restrict ions taken by the
Palestinian Government, neighboring countries and the rest of the world; it  is possible that
PADICO’s operating act ivit ies will be affected by these global changes that current ly
influence the different commodities markets and the supply chain industr ies, in addition to
tourism and hotels due to the restrict ions imposed and travel restraints in place, including
quarantine for travelers, and the cancellat ion of conferences and hotel reservat ions.

The extent and durat ion of such impacts remain uncertain and dependent on future
developments that cannot be accurately predicted at this time. Given the ongoing
economic uncertainty, a reliable est imate of the impact cannot be made at the date of
authorizat ion of these consolidated financial statements. These developments could
impact PADICO’s future financial results, cash flows and financial condit ion. PADICO’s
management is in the process of assessing the impact of the Corona Virus on PADICO
operations to take appropriate act ions.
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